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RESULTS AT A GLANCE

Group Company
12/31/16 12/31/15 an 12/31/16 12/31/15 a6
N000 NOOD Change 000 N000 Change
Fevenue 138,993,752 133,807,574 __':‘-.SH 119,513,392 114,242 541 0.48
(Lossjprofit before taxation (1,448,029 £, 455,973 (123.03) (1,239,251) 6,234,338 i119.88)
(Lossyprofit for the year (3,816,792) 24440, 140 (256.42) (3,656,210} 2,836,672 (228.89)
Other comprehensive income 6,822,152 (680,028) (1,103.22) 122,845 {180,372) (168.11)
Total comprehensive income 3,005,360 1,760,112 70,75 (3,533,365) 2,656,300 (233.02)
Non - controlling interest (9,654) 225 (4,390,584} - -
Profitf{loss) attributable to
equity holders of the parent 3,015,014 1,750,587 71.32 (3,533,365) 2 656,300 (233.02)
Retained earnings 17,065,287 22729580 (24.92) 12,059,647 17 573,012 (31.37)
Share capital 0, 000 a0, D00 a0, 000 e, D00 -
Sharcholders' funds 25,316,315 34,241,953 4.22 13,145,087 18,608,452 (28.55)
Per share data
Earnings per share
Basic 228 L.33 7132 (2.68) 20 (233.02)
Diluted 2.28 1.33 7132 (2.68) 2m {233.02)
et assets per share
Basic 19.18 18.40 422 9.96 14.14 (29 55)
Diluted 19,18 [5.40 422 Q.96 14.14 [29.53)
Stock Exchange quotation at 31
December (Naira) 3858 42.00 (314 3858 42,00 (5.14)
Number of emploves g,142 100,887 {16.03) 7888 0,277 {14.597)

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
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JULIUS BERGER BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The directors are pleased to present to the members of Julius Berger Nigeria Pl at the 47th Annual General Meeting
{"AGM") their report on the business of the Group for the vear ended 31 December 2016,

1. Legal form
The Company was incarporated in Nigeria under the Companies Act 1968, now CAMA, as a private limited liability
company on 18 February 1970. The Company subsequently converted to a public limited liability company and its
shares became listed on the Nativnal Stock Exchange on 20 September 1991,

2. Principal activities
Ihe principal activities of the Company are the business of planning and construction of all kinds of civil engineering
works, The Company has 7 (seven) subsidiaries, with their principal activities stated as follows:

S/MN|Subsidiary Principal activities and business Date of Holding
incorporation
1. |Abumet Nigeria Limited  |Manufacturers and dealers in aluminium, steel| 15 June 1990 9%
iron or ather structural products of such nature,
2. [Julius Berger Services Providers of ports services, stevedores, cargo| 30 August 2006 100%
Nigeria Limited superintendents, porl management,
warehousemen, agents and |‘J:nprii:tnr5 af
| warehouses
| 3 |Julius Berger Medical Health care providers for the operation of medical| 22 August 2011 100%
Services Limited service insbtutions and all form of medical and
health care services.
4. |PrimeTech Design and Engineers, planning,  design, development| 22 August 2011 100%:
Engineering Migeria construction and maintenance of engineering
Limited works and products of all description,
5. |Julius Berger Investments [Investment company and managers. 1 June 2012 100%
Limited
6. |Julius Berger International [Providers of logistical and technical support on an| 24 June 2008 100%
GmbH international level.
7 |Ju][u5 Berger Free Zone ”J*larming; and construction of all kinds and aspects| 24 March 2015 100%
|,F_nLerpr15{_-5 Calabar of civil engineering works and related activities as
well as maintenance of buildings and facilities in
| Free Trade Zones.

[he financial results of all the subsidiaries have been consclidated in these financial statements.

3. Resulls for the vear

Comparative highlights of the operational results of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 are as
stated in the table below:

Group 2016 2015

MN000 AO00
Fevenue 138,993,752 133,807,574
Profit attributable to Group activities 3,003,360 L760,112
Retained earnings 17,065,287 22,724 580

4. Review of business development
Irthe vear under review, mspite of the cha llenging economic environment, the Group, in the opinion af the directors,
performed satisfactorily and in accordance with planning.
Save as herein disclosed, no other events have occurred since the yvear ended 31 December 2016, which would affect
the financial statements.

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2006 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JULIUS BERGER BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REFORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

5. Dividends

51

5.2

Dividends
The directors would not be recommending to the members al the 47th Annual General Meeting, payment of
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Unclaimed dividends and share certificates

The list of shareholders whe have either unclaimed dividends or share certificates have been compiled and
are attached with this document. Shareholders who find their names on the lists and have claimed their
dividend(s} or share certificate(s) since 31 December 2016, should kindly ignore the attached list. However,
shareholders who are yet to claim their unclaimed dividend(s) or share certificate(s) should contact the
Company Secretary or the Registrars, GTL Registrars Ltd,

6. Directors and directors’ interests and shareholding

6.1

6.3

JULIUS BERGER NIGERTA PLC

RC 6852

Board of Directors in 2016
The directors who served on the Board of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 were as
follows:

1 AVM (Dr) Mohammed Nurudeen Ilmam, CFR
2 Engr. Heinz Stockhausen (German)

3 HEH Igwe Peter Nwokike Anugwu I, OFR

4 Engr. Jafaru Damulak

5 Dr. Ernest Nnaemeka Azudialu - Obiejesi

& Mr George Marks (German}

7 Engr. Wolfgang Goetsch {Austrian)
8 Mr Mutiu Sunmonu, CON

9 Mr Wolfgang Kellermann (German)
10 Alhaji Zubairu [brahim Bayi

1T Mr David Herron [Australian)

Changes to the Board

During the period under review, AVM (Dr.) Mohammed Nurudeen Imam, CFR and Mr. David Herron
resigned their appointment as Directors with effect from March 31, 2016 and June 3, 2016 respectively. Mr.
Mutiu Sunmonu, CON was appointed the Chairman of the Board with effect from April 1, 2016, Engr.
Waolfgang Goetsch was appointed Managing Director with effect from July 23, 2016

Directors for re-election

Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu, CON and Mr. George Marks are the Directors retiring by retation, in accordance with
the provisions of 5259 of CAMA and the Articles of Association. Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu, CON and Mr.
George Marks all being eligible, offer themselves for re-election,

2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JULIUS BERGER

6. Directors and directors” interests

6.4

Director’s interest

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Far the purposes of 5 275, 276 and 277 of CAMA and in compliance with the listing requirement of the

Migerian Stock Exchange:

641  some Directors gave notices of disclosable direct and Jor indirect interests in some contracts and

assets of the Company;

647 the Directors’ mterest in the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the Register of
Members and in the Register af Directors” holdings and contracts as notified by them are as

stated in the table below:

Mr, Mutiu Sunmonu, CON

Engr. Heinz Stockhausen

HEH lgwe Peter Nwokike Anugwu JI°, OFR

Engr. lafaru Damulak

Dir. Ernest Mnaemeka Azudialu - Obigjesi - Indivect
Mr. George Marks

Engr. Woltgang Goetsch

Mr. Waolfgang Kellermann

Alhaji Zubairu [brahim Bayi

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLL

R{ 6832

s umber of Directors' Direct and Indirect

Holdings as at

15 March 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 205
“umber Number Mumber
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
B8,000 88,000 HE,000
1,980,549 1,980,849 1,980,849

65,127,297 165,127 597 163,127 397

465,019 463,619 417,119

2006 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JULIUS BERGER BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT'DY)

7. Share capital and shareholding
The Company did not purchase its own shares during the vear.

.1 Authorised share capital:
The authorised share capital of the Company is N800 million made up of 1.6 billion ordinary shares of 50 Kobo
each.

2 Issued and fully paid share capital:
The issued and paid-up share capital of the Company currently is N6a0 million made up of 1.32 billion ordinary
shares of 50 Kobo each,

.3 Beneficial ownership:
The issued and paid-up share capital of the Company, as at 31 December 2016 and 15 March 2017 when the
Financial Statements were approved, were beneficially held as stated in the table below.

Beneficial No of Ordinary % holdings as No of Ordinary % holdings as at 31
ownership Shares held as  at 15 March  Shares held as at December
at 15 March 31 December
2m7 2m7 2016 2016 2015

Bi!f:il‘lger SE 217,500,000 185 217,800,000 163 I6.5
Watertown Energy Limited 132,000,000 10.0 132,000,000 10.0 10,0
Goldstone Estates Limited 262,262,079 19.9 262,262,079 199 199
Ibile Holdings Limited 72,600,000 55 72,600,000 55 3 )
Other Nigerian Citizens,
Associations and Covernments (36,337 921 481 635,337,921 481 481

1,320,000,000 10040 1,320,000,000 1000 10000

4 Free float

The free float analysis of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company, as at 31 December 2016 and 15
March 2017 when the financial statements were approved, is as follows:

Mo of Ordinary Mo of Ordinary
Shares held as % holdings as ~ Shares held as at % holdings as at 31
at 15 March  at 15 March 31 December December

2017 2my 2016 26 2m5
Strategic shareholding B51,248 984 645 851,248,954 1.5 fd.5
Directors” direct sharcholding 4,473,635 0.3 4,473,655 03 0.3
Free float 464,277 361 352 454,277 361 35.2 35.2
1,320,000,000 100 1,320,000,000 100.0 100.0

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JULIUS BERGER BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONT'D)

7. Share capital and shareholding

.5 Share range analysis as at 31 Drecember 2016

Mo of i
Share Range Sharcholders Shareholders Mo of units held % Shareholding
1 - 500 2,246 20.85 430,861 0,03
500 - 1,000 1,090 1013 803,529 0.06
Lo0 - 5000 3476 3232 8,905,461 0.67
5001 - 10,000 1,674 13.56 11,905,101 0.0
10,001 - 25,000 1.196 11.12 18,566,669 1.41
25,001 - 100,000 804 7A7 37 269,902 283
100,001 - 500,000 204 1.90 41,132,491 312
500,001 - 1,000,000 22 0.20 16,006,141 1.71
1,000,001 and above 44 041 1,184 879,845 BO7h
10,756 100.00 1,320,000,000 100,00

8. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Significant movements in properties and equipment constituting the PPE of the Group during the year are
indicated in Note 14 on page 42, In the opinion of the directors, the market value of the properties and
equipment is not less than the value shown in the accounts.

9. Donations and CSR Initiatives
During the vear 2016, the Group undertook Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives shown in the table
on the next page valued at N530.3 million {2015 - N128.6 million) and made donations valued at N5.1 million
(2015: N6.5 million)

In compliance with S 38(2) of CAMA no donation wade to any political association or for any political purpose.

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EI JULIUS BERGER

9. Donations and CSR Initiatives (Continued)

Corporate Social Respansibility
Education

Health

Youth Sports

Community Development
Emergency Kesponse

Donations

Ladies Gelf Championship, Abuja
MNigerian Stock Exchange Charity Run
1BB Golf and Country Club Captain's Cup
Nigerian Bar Association Conference
Federation of Canstruction Industry AGM
Nigerian Academy of Engineers

Giving Tuesday Cancer Centre

Environmental Protection Apency ree Plantineg Campaisn
A & Palg

Nigerian Society of Engineers

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT (CONT'LY)

Amount {N)
2,000,000
6,755,580
2,325,000

28,092,232
11,099,852

50,282,664

Amount [N)
250,000
1,000,000
250,000
150,000
S00,000
2,000,000
300,000
200,000

250,000
5,100,000

In compliance with 5 38(2) of CAMA no donation was made to any political party, political association or

for any political purpose.

10, Research and development

11.

Research, development and deployment of leading edge construction and engineering technologies, design
and methadologies are key to the Group brand. Julius Berger Nigeria Ple and its subsidiaries would
continue to invest in research and development in order to enhance its design, planning, execution,
construction and local engineering capabilities to deliver on client requisitions innovatively.

Technical service and know - how agreement

lechnical Services Agreement executed between components in the Group and Julius Berger International
5
GmbH are registered with the National Office for Technology Acquisition and Promotion (NOTAP).

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
RO a#32
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B JULIUS BERGER BOARD OF DIRECTORS" REPORT (CONT'D)

12. Suppliers
The significant suppliers to the Company locally and internationally are:

e

10.
Tl

b2

Julius Berger International Gmbl
Lafarge Africa Plc

Mantrac Migeria Limited

Abumet Nigeria Limited

Dangote Cement Industries Limited
Samofaz Migeria Limited

Tabson Nigeria Limited

Federated Steel Mills Limited

Apex Faint Limited,

Ringardas Nigeria Limited.

Peri Formwaork + F:laﬂf:l:ling Nig. Limited
Forte Oil Plc

13. Post year end events

Save as disclosed, there were no significant post vear end events, that could have had a material effect on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20016, which has nol been adequately provided for.

14. Human capital management

Emplovee relations were stable and cordial in the year under review

B |

L

Employment of physically challenged persons

It is the policy of the Group that there should be no unfair discrimination in considering applications for
employment including those from physically challenged persons. All employees whether or not physically
challenged are given equal opportunities 1o develop their experience and knowledge and to qualify for
promotion in furtherance of their careers. As at 31 December 2016, there were 36 physically challenged
persons emploved by the Group.

Health, safety at work and welfare of employees

The nature of Group activities demands that a high priority is placed on the health, safety and welfare of
emplovees as well as of all visitors in all aspects of Group operations,

To this end, there is a slrict observance of health and safety policies, regulations and structures. Further,
medical faciliies, in accordance with the welfare schedule agreed with the operating domestic workers
unions and the provisions of the National Health Insurance Scheme Act CADP N42, Laws of the Federation
of Migeria 2004, are provided to all stalfl and their immediate families comprising a spouse and four
children.

In the Group there is full compliance with the provisions ol the Pensions Relorm Act of 2014.

Involvement and training

The consultation machinery for the dissemination of information and involvement in mallers concerning,
the staff and corporate affairs was engaged by all components within the Group.

Training and education are crucial to the retention of skills and expertise within the Group. The {_.'rf:aup is

comnmitted to investments in ensuring the required skills set for its business and operation,

15 Audit committee

The members of the Statutory Audit Committee, appointed at the Annuval General Meeting held on 16 June 2018
inaccordance with 5359 (3) of CAMA were:

-

s

-

Sir Sunday Nnamdi Nwosu, K55 - Chairman
HRH lgwe Peter Nwokike Anugwu, |1, OFR Member
Chief Timothy Avobami Adesivan - Member
Engr. Jafaru Damulak & Memnber
Brig. Gen. Emmanuel Ebije [kwue, GCON - Mernber
[, Ernest Nnaemeka Azudialu-Obiejesi hember

The Committee met in accordance with the provisions of 5339 of CAMA and will present its report.

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC

RC pA52
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E JULIUS BERGER BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONT'D)

16. Auditors
The auditors, Messrs Nexia Agbo Abel & Co, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. A resolution
will be proposed authorising the directors to determine their remuneration,

17. Compliance with regulatory requirements
The directors confirm that they have reviewed the structures and activities of the Company in view of the Code
and the regulations of the Nigerian Stock Exchange and the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
Regulators), The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and as at the date of this report, the
Company has been and is in substantial compliance with the provisions of the Code and the regulatory
requirements of the Regulators.

— order of the Boar

- i Mt | AAAIK

rs Cecilia Ekanem Madueke
Company Secrelary

10 Shettima A. Munguno Crescent
Utako 900 108/FCT Abuja

15 March 2017

Note: The Company Secretary was granted a waiver by the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria to sign the Directors’ raport
without indicating any FRC number,

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Report of the

Audit Committee

In compliance with S35% (6) of CAMA, we, the members of the Statutory Audit Committee whose names are stated hereunder, have
reviewead and considerad the Auditor's Report required 1o be made in accordance with 5359 (3) of CAMA, the consalidated audited

Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the reports thereon, confirm as follows:

1. The: accounting and reporing policies of the Group are in accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical practices.
i The scope and planning of audit requiremnent wera in our opinion adeguale,
3. We have reviewed the findings on Management malters, in conjunclion with the External Auditors, and are satisfied with the

responss of Management thereon.
4, The systems of accounting and infemal controls tor the Group are adequate.

4. We have made the recommendations required to be made in respect of the External Auditors.

Members of the Audit Committees

Sir Sunday Mnamdi Mwosd, K55

Chief Timothy Avobami Adesivan

Brig. Gan. Emmanuesl Ebije lkwue, GCON
HRH lgwe Peter Nwokike Anugwu, JP, OFR
Eragr, Jafaru Damulak

Dr. Emest Mnagmeka Azudialu-Obisjesi

Signed on behalfl of the Committes by,

- T L
i S

Sir Sunday 0

% b
Chairman of the Statitory Audit Committes
FRC /2014 /100N [ 0000006788

Mote: The Chairman of the Statutery Audit Committee, not heing a
March 14, 2017 professional member of an accounting body established by the Act of the

Mational Assembly in Migeria, was granted 8 waiver by the Financial

Reporting Council of Nigeria to sign the Report of the Audit Committee,

Jubus Hergar Migeriz Plc » RUG Mo, G352 = TIN 1002185880
Registersd Office: 10 Shattim;

Murgung Lrescant | Liako 500 104 | FCT Abuja | Nigeria

Directors: Mr. M. Sunmanu, CON, Chaiman « Engr. H. Stockhausen Vice Cheirman {Gaman) « Frar, W, Goeteoh, Managng Director {Austnan)
N, W Boliereann, Financia Cinactor | Garm, £ | Bayl: Directar Administadan « HEH lgwa PN Arugay, JP. OFR

CrE b Az Cosesi= Foagr. ) Damulak « Me G, Marks [German)




JULIUS BERGER

Statement of

Directors’ Responsibilities

By the provisions of 5 334 and S 335 of CAMA the Direclors are responsibie for the preparation of Financial Staterments which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the profit or loss at the and of each financial year. The Direclors areg
required by the provisions of the Code to issue this statement in connection with the preparation of the Financial Staterents for the
year ended December 31, 2016,

In compliance with the provisions of CAMA, the Directors must ensure that,
1. Proper accounting records are maintained.

Applicable accounting standards are followsd.

Suitable accounting policies are adopted and consistently applied.
Judgement and estimates made are reasonable and prudent.

The going concern basis is used, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

o oa e

Internal control procedures are instituted, which as far as is reasonably possible, are adeguate, safeguard the assets and

prevent and detest fraud and other iregularities.

The Directors accapt responsibility for the preparation of these Financial Statements, which have heen prepared in compliance with:

1, The provisions of CANA;

z The provisions of the Financial Reporting Council of Migeria (FRON), Act Mo, B of 2011,
1A The published accounting and financial reporting standard issued by the FRCHN;

4 The requiations of the SEC; amd

5 The requlations and listing requirements of the NSE,

The Direciors have made an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern hased on the supparing assumptions
clated in the Financial Statements and have every reason o hold that the Group will remain a going concerm in the financial year
ahaad.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by,

fr. Mutiu Sunmonu, CON

Chairman

Fq?-.-.f"}‘_l.'ﬁd ! t?ﬁ@ﬂﬂﬁ'l By
1
N t-‘\{fx

Engr. Wolfgang Gitsch
Managing Director
FRC {2094 / NSE / 00000006484

harch 15, 2017

Jubuz Berger Migeria Ple « RO Na, G52 « TIN 1002185360

Regsterad Office: 10 Shetima A, Munguna Crascenl | Utaks 900 908 | FCT Abuja | Migesia
Wabsile wesw jiiils barger com « Emal: infajuivs-bargar com « Plone: +234 803 308 7000

Liractars: M. M. Surimany, CON, Chairman » Engr. H, Stockheusen, Vice Chairman {Gamnan) = Ergr, W, Geetsch, Managing Dinector {Ausztrian)
Mr W Kolleermann, Financial Director {Garnan) » Ak 7. | Bayi, Drecier Adminestration - HRH Igwe F Y. Anugwe, JF. OFR
Or.E N AzudigCinigjesi + Enge, J. Damulac » Mr. G, Marks {German)
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CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to S7 (2) of the FRCN Act, 2011, we have reviewed the Annual Reports and
Financial Statements of Julius Berger Nigeria Plc and its consolidated subsidiaries for
the year ended December 31, 2016.

Based on our knowledge, our Financial Statements do not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary and are not
misleading with respect to the period covered by the report.

The Code of Ethics and Statement of Business Practices formulated by the Board
has been implemented as part of the corporate governance practices of the Group
throughout the period of intended reliance, and the Directors and Key Executives
of the Group had acted honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the whole
Group.

Our Financial Statements, and other financial information included therein, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the Group as of, and for, the period presented in the Financial Statements.
We are responsible for designing the internal controls and procedures surrounding
the financial reporting process and assessing these controls (as required by S7
(2) (f) of the FRCN Act) and have designed such internal controls and procedures,
or caused such controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Group is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared. The controls, which are properly designed, have been operating effectively
in the period of intended reliance.

Based on the foregoing, we, the undersigned, hereby certify that to the best of
our knowledge and belief the information contained in the Financial Statements
of our Group for the year ended December 31, 2016, appear to be true, correct and up

\1
\-{4 et

. “} R 5 31 00 1
nar. Wolfgang Goetsch r. Walfgang Kollermann
gr. Wolfgang o g gang 3
Managing Director Financial Director
FRC /2014 / NSE / 00000006484 FRC/2012/ANAN/O0000000386

Julizz Berper Migeria Pic « RC Mo, G352 = TIN 10021 BSEAD

Fequieren Offca: 10 Sheltima o, Munguno Crescant | Uleho SO0 106 | FCT Anga | Migena
‘Website: waw juliug-henger.com + Emal infaidjulius-pengar com « Prione: +234 513 306 7000

Directors: Mr W Surmonu, COK, Charman - Engr, 4 Stockhausen, Wies Chaiman [Serman) - Eagr. W. Geetsch. Managing Deector {Austian)
Mr. W Kollemana, Financial Diractor [German] « AR, 2. 1 Bayl, Direcioe ddmiistalion = HRH lgwe P8 Anugwy. JF, OFR
i BN, A reala-Dbieiesi < Engr J Damalak « W S Marks [German)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF JULILS BERGER NIGERLA PLC
ONTHE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanving consolidated financial statements of Julius Berger Nigeria Ple and its subsidiaries which
comprise the consolidated statement of flinancial position as al 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equily, consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information set out on pages 18 to 62,

In our opinion, the consolidated Hnancial statements present faicly, in all material respects, the financial position of Julius Berger
Nigeria Ple and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 and the financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, Companies and Allied Matters Act CADC20 LFN 2004 and the
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No 6, 2001

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditer's Responsibilities for the Auadit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section ot
our report. We are independent of the Company and #ts subsidiaries in accordance with the requirements of the Institute of
Chartered  Accountants of Nigeria Professional Code of Conduct and Guide for Accountants (ICAN Code) and  other
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial stalements in Nigeria. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the 1CAN Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing
audits in Nigeria, The 1CAN Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Protessional Accountants (Parts A and By We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur apinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
tinancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whale, and in torming our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

See pote A6 and note & o the consolidated Hoancial statements.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the matter

Eevenue is a significant measure of the - Dwraudit procedures include testing of the design, existence and operating,
performance of the group, effectiveness of internal control procedures implemented as well as test of
There is a risk of misstatement of revenue details to ensure accurate processing of revenue transactions.

due b inadequate cutk-off procedures or - We obtained and reviewed contract documents (o cnsSUre revenue were

wrong application of 1AS 11 (IFRS 15). recognised in line with 1AS LT (IFRS 15).
We performed substantive analviical procedures and investigated differences
i excess of the threshold.

- We reviewed basis of valuation of foreign denominated contracts,

- We performed cut-off Lests to ensure that revenue were not under/ over stated.

Crher information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors' Report which we obtained
prior to the date of this auditor s report. The other information does not include the financial stalements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Cur opinion on the conselidated linancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance thereon.

I connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledpge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this repards,




Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LEN 2004, the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No 6, 2011, the
International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal contral as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated tinancial statements that are free from material musstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company and its subsidiaries
ability to continue as o going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company and its subsidiaries or to cease operations, or have no
rivalistic alternative buat to do so

Auditor's responsibilities for the audif of the consolidated financial statements

Our obpectives are to obtain reasanable assurance aboul whether the conselidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether doe to frand or error, and e issue an audilor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the agpregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated statements,

Ms part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit, We also:

i Identifv and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due (o fraud or error,
design and pertorm audit procedures responsive Lo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufticient and appropriate to
provide a basis for opinion, The risk of not detecting a malerial misstalement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting trom error, as frand may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control
Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the: circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company and its subsidiaries’
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounling estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors,

- Conclude o the appropritbencss of the directors’ use ol the gomg concern basis of accounling and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating Lo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company and its subsicdiaries ability fo continue as a going concern, I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are regquuired fo draw attention in our auditon's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are madequate, to modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of vur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company or its subsidiaries to cease to
continue as i going concermn
Fvaluate the overall presentation, stracture and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial staternents represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findmgs, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and Lo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to

bear o our independence, and where applicable, related saleguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

o compliance with the requirements of the Sixth Schedule of the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LEN 2004, we

confirm that:

i) wir have obtained all the infarmation and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and beliet were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

i) the Company and its subsidiaries have kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those books;
and

iy the consolidated statements of financial position and comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account and
retirns,

P
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Tolulope Fasanva - FRC /20012 1AM S OO0O0MN 109
for: Mexia Agbo Abel & Co
Chartered Accountants
Abuja, Nigeria
15" March 20107




. JULIUS BEHGEH STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
Group Company
& Note 12/31/16 12/31/15 12/31/16 12/31/15
) WN000 00D N000 MN000
. Revenue f 138,993,752 133,807,574 119,513,392 115,242,541
B Cost of sales (84,767,201  (91,473,106)  (81,127,668)  (81,209,011)
Gross profit 54,276 461 42,334 165 38,685,724 38,033,530
Marketing expenses (53,327) (75,140 (45,408) (66,355)
. Administrative expenses (37 380,880 (30,445,734) (19,549,439) (30,650,717)
. Orperating profil 16,792,254 11.813,59% 19,090,877 7.316,458
. Investment income 7 284,681 139,783 86,502 3,678,068
Other gains and losses ] 1,443,523 HU5 38 (398,143) 1,358,584
. Finance cost g (5784,246)  (6,148772)  (5784.246)  (6,148772)
Foreign exchange acquisition loss (14,234,241) = [14,234.247) #
. {Loss)/profit before tax L0 (1.498,029) 6,499,973 (1,239,251} 6,234,338
. [ncome tax expense 12.1 (2,318,763) i4,059.833) {2,416,959) (3,397 666)
- {Loss)/profit for the year (3,816,792) 2,440,140 (3,656,210 2836672
. Other comprehensive income for the year net taxes
. Actuarial gains/ {losses) on retirement benetits 122,845 [180.372) 122,845 (180,372)
Irreversible to income statement
‘ Differences om translating foreign operations 6,699,307 {499,656) ¢
. Total comprehensive income 3,005,360 L7e0,112 {3,533,365) 2,656,300
. Altributable to:
Orwners of the Company 3,015,014 1,759 887 (3,533.363) 2.656,300
. son-rontrolling interests [9.654) 235 =
. T'otal comprehensive income 3,005,360 1,760,112 (3,533,365) 2,656,300
- Earnings per share
. Basic earnings per share (N) 13 2.28 1.33 (2.68) 2.01
- Diluted earnings per share (M) 13 298 .33 (2.68) 201
. JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2006 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

] suLius BERGER

Group Company
12/31/16 12/31/15 12/31/16 12/31/15
Assets Note N000 W00o N 000 W000
Mon-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 14 49,712,834 58,376,513 47,093,218 55,470,657
Coodwill 161 85,348,748 5,041,184 - -
Other intangible assets 16.2 2,766 a2z - -
Ivestment property 17 2444 480 2,546,436 2,444 460 2,546,436
Investmendt in subsidiaries 18 - = 15,193,308 15,193,308
Irade and other receivables 21 569,619 H44.122 230,319 844,122
Tax receivable 22 26,026,032 20,765,042 25,282,312 20,273,902
Deferred tax assets 123 3,453,858 10,087 301 5,375,286 9,874,831
Total non-current assels 92,558,317 97,693,910 05,938,993 104,203,346
Current assets
[nventories 19 11,699,526 11,110,116 9,165,557 8,935,423
Amount due from customers under construction contracts 20 33,082,455 27,228 437 29,537,665 27,204,457
Irade and other receivables 21 108,291,146 88,634,246 108,507,194 9,554,805
Tax receivable 22 1,417,845 3,506,478 1,395 660 5,235,578
Cash and cash equivalents 10,584,522 13,360,038 6,229 515 10,148,623
165,075,494 143,899 305 154,935,591 142,081,586
Assets classihied as held for sale I3 1,545,121 1.4593,055 1,523,825 1,472,823
Total current assels 166,620,615 147,392 360 156,459,416 143,554,709
Total assets 259,178,932  245086,270  252,398409 247,758,055
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 23 fa, 000 fafalk, (00 B0, 000 Hedh, D00
Share premium 23 425,440 425,440 425,440 425,440
Forsign currency translation reserve 7119062 419,755 - .
Retained earnings 17,065,287 22.7209.580 12,059,647 17,573,012
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 25,269,789 24234775 13,145,087 18,658,452
.\u'!nn-t'm‘llmllinj; interests 46,526 57180 = =
Total equily 25,316,315 24,291,955 13,145,087 I 18,658,452
Mon - Current liabilities
Borrowings 25 = - - -
Retirtement benefit liabilities 262 2463491 1,823,781 1,311,668 1,420,945
Deferred tax linbilities 12.3 0,185,562 12,989,322 Q.000,213 12,568,450
Amount due to customers under construction confrascts 201 119 095,895 106,971,355 119,095,805 111,344,506
Provisions 28 454 232 404,308 300,000 300,000
Total non-current liabilities 131,202,180 122,218 706 129,800,776 125,633,910
Current liabilities
Amount due to customers under construction contracks 20.1 24,000,265 32912602 23,605,542 28,737,461
I'rade and other payables 27 44015318 34,596,825 51,191,400 44,125,795
Borrowings 25 33,172,798 24,807 936 33,172,798 24 807 934
Current tax payvable 122 1,423,923 6,106,748 1,395,660 5,770,100
Retirement benefit labilities 26.1 39,133 151,438 27,145 24,3001
Total current liahilities 102,660,437 98,575,549 109,452 546 103,465,693
Tatal [ia]:lE'IIitit-..-i 233,862,617 220,794,315 239,253,322 229 099,603
Total u-.tn)(‘l’:a_aﬁﬂ uahilit¥s 259,178,932 245,086,270  252,398409 247,758,055
' ST

These fimalicig! Stgienonts

e approsd by the directors on 157 March 2007 and signed on its behalf e

Engr. Wolfgang Goelsch
FRC/ 2014, NSE / 00000006454

Managing Director

Wolfgang K.r'rlj\r\rmann
FROC 2012/ A MNAN SO00CO0003%
Financial Director

he accounting pelicies on pages 23 to 33 and notes on pages 18 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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IZ) JuLiuS BERGER

Note
Cashflows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and emplovees
Cash provided by operating activities
Cash paid for taxes
Foreign exchange acquisition loss

Net cash (used inl'generated by operating activities 29

Cashflows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14
[nvestment in subsidiary

Interest received z
Dividend received
Praceeds  from
equipment

disposal of property, plant and

Net cash generated/{used in) investing activities

Cashflows from financing activities
2521
Interest paid G

Repayment of loans

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 29.1

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash and bank balances

Borrowings (bank overdrafts)

Term loans

291

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
RO 6R52

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Group Company
12/31/16 12/31/15 12/31/16 12/31/15
N '000 N '000 N '000 N '000
196,614,015 159,503,327 128,542,794 131,940,871
(188,119,372)  (150,117,936)  (120,994,323) (116,985,876)
B,494,643 9,385,391 7,548,471 14,954,995
(544,849) (391,554) (534,522) (378,111)
(14,234,241) - (14,234,241)

(6,284,447) 8,993,837 (7,220,292) 14,576,884
(695,586) (3,527,214) (684,798) {2,036,091)

- - £ {2,061,817)

284,681 139,763 86,502 139,763

5 - - 3,538,305

6,600,810 3,349,496 6,580,455 3,344,542
6,189,905 (37,955) 5,982,159 2,924,702
(3,281,590) (2,860,492) (3,281,590) (2,860,492)
(5,784,246) (6,148,772) (5,784,246) (6,148,772)
(1,980,000) (2,998,988) (1,980,000) (2,998,988)
(11,045,836)  (12,008,252)  (11,045836)  (12,008,252)

(11,140,378) (3,052,369)  (12,283,969) 5,493,334
{11,447 898) (8,395,529)  (14,659,313)  (20,152.647)
(22,588,276)  (11,447.898)  (26,943,283) _ (14,659,313)
10,584,522 13,360,038 6,229,515 10,148,623
(33,172,798)  (21,526,346)  (33,172,798)  (21,526,346)
- {3,281,590) . {3.281,590)
(22,588,276)  (11,447,898)  (26943,283) _ (14,659,313)
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i . NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JULIUS BEHGEH FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
. 1. General information
Julius Berger Migeria Ple was incorporated as a private limited liability Company en 18 February 1970 The Company
- subsequently converted to a public liability company in 1979 with its shares quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. It is
regristered in Nigeria with registration number, RC 6852, The address of its registered otfice and principal place of business
- are disclosed in the introduction o the annual report. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries {the Group)
- are described in notes 18 and 31 to the financial siatements.
2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (1IFRS)
. 21 Amendments to [FRSs and the new interpretations that are mandatorily effective for the year ended December 31, 2016
&
The following revisions to accounting standards and pronouncements were issued and affective al the reporting period
3
Pronouncement Mature of change Reguired to be
- implemented for
. perinds beginning
om or after
. IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral IFRS 14 specifies the accounting for regulatory deferral 1 January 2016
Accounts account balances that arise from rate-regulated activities, The
standard s available only to first-ime adopters who
. recognise regulatory  deferral  account  balances under
previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
- [FES 14 permits eligible tirst-time adopters of [FRSs to
continue their previous GAAP rate-regulated accounting
- policies,  with  [imited changes and requires separate
presentation of regulatory deferral account balances in the
- Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, This standard did
- not impact on the Group f{inancial statements as the Group
had since adopted [FRS.
. Amendments to [FRSs 171: The amendments provide guidance on how to account tor the 1 January 2016
Accounting for acquisitions of acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which the
- interests in joint operations activities constitute a business as defined in [FRS 13 Business
Combination, Specifically, the amendments state that the
- relevant principles on accounting for business combinations
in IFRS 13 and other standards {eg. 1AS 36 Impairment of
. Assets reparding impairment of cash generating unit o which
goodwill on acquisition of a joeint operation has been
. allocated) should be applied. This standard did not impact on
the Group financial statements as there are no joint operations
. in the Group,
Amendments to [AS 16 and 1 January 2016
- LAS 38: Clarification of Amendments to [AS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue
acceptable methods of depreciation methed for items of PPE while IAS 38 introduces
. depreciation and amortisation a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. The presumption
could only be rebutted in only two rare circumstances. The
. Group does not use any of the two methods respectively
addressed in 1AS 16 and TAS 28 as such the standard did not
- impact on the Group financial statements.
Amendments o LAS 27
. Equity Method in Separate [he amendments to 1AS 27 is to permit investments in | January 2016
Financial Statements subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to be opltionally
- accounted for using the equity method in the separate
financial statements, The Group does not intend to consider
. this amendment, rather it will continue accounting in the
separate financial statement as disclosed in the accounting
. policies.
T
- JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Gt JULIUS BERGER

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR5)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.1 The following revisions to accounting standards and pronouncements were issued and effective at the reporting peried.

Pronouncement

Mature of change

Required to be
implemented for
perinds beginning
on or after

Amendments to 1IFRES 10
and 1AS 28 Sale or
Contribution of  Assels
between an Investor and
its  Associate  or  Joind
Venture.

Amendments to TFRS 10 and 1A% 28 clarifies the treatment of the
sale or contribution of asset from an investor to its associate or
joint venture, as follows; 1. Full recognition in the investor's
financial statements of gains and losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business (as defined in
[FRS 3 Business Combination). 2. the partial recognition of gains
and losses where the assets do nol constitute a business, i.e, a
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in thal associale or joint venture, These
requirements apply regardless of the legal form of fransaction,
ep. whether the sale or contribution of assets occurs by an
investor transferring shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets
{resulting in loss of control of the subsidiary), or by direct sale of
the assets themselves.

This standard did not impact on the Group financial statements
as there are no joint venture and/ or associates in the Group.

1 January 2016

Amendments to [AS 16
and 1AS 41; Bearer Plants

'he amendments define bearer plant and require biological
assets that meet the delinition of a bearer plant to be accounted
for as PPE in accordance with 1AS 16, instead of 1AS 41, Also,
bearer plants can be measured using either cost model or the
revaluation models set out in [AS 16, The Groups does not have
bearer assets, hence the amendment has no impact on the Group
Financial Statements.

| January 2016

Amendments to 1AS 1:
Disclosure Initiative

The amendment seek to address percerved impediments to
preparers exercising their judgement m presenting their financial
reports by making the following changes: 1. Clarification that
information should not be obscured by aggregating or by
providing immaterial information, materiality considerations
apply to the all parts of the tinancial statements, and even when
a standard disclosure,  materiality
considerations do apply; 2. Clarification that the list of line items
te be presented in these statements can be disaggregated and
aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in
these statements and clarification that an entity's share of OC1 of
equity accounted  associates and joint ventures should be

requires  a  specific

presented in aggrepgate as single line items based on whether or
not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss; 3
Additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to
clarity that understandability and comparability should  be
considered when determining the order of the notes and to
demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the order so
far listed in paragraph 114 of [AS1.

There 15 immaterial impact of this amendment to the Group
Financial Statements.

1 January 2016

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLOC

R AHAZ
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JULIUS BERGER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

2.1 The following revisions to accounting standards and pronouncements were issued and effective at the reporting

Pronouncement

Nature of change

Required to be
implemented for
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to IFRSs 10,
IFE512 and 1AS 28
Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exc eption

These amendments to IFRES 10, [FRS 12 and TAS 28 (2011)
address issues that have arisen in the context of applving
the conselidation exception for investment entities by
clarifying the following points: 1) The exempton from
preparing  consolidated  fmancial statements  for an
intermediate parent entity is available to a parent entity
that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the
investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair
value. 2} A subsidiary that provides services related to
the parent's investment activiies should not be
consolidated if the subsidiary itself is an investment
entity. 3) When applying the equity method to an
associate or a joint venture, a non-investment entity
investor in an investment entity may retain the fair value
measurement applied by the associate or joint venture to
its interests i subsidiaries, * An investment entity
measuring all of its subsidiaries at fair value provides the
disclosures relatng to investment entities required by
IFR512,

The Group does not have any of the above mentioned
subsidiaries, as such, there are no impact from the
amendments to this standard.

1 January 2016

Annual Improvements 2012-
2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2012-2014 cyele
includes a number of amendments to various IFRSs.
These amendments to IFRS include:

IFRS 5 — Adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in
which an entity reclassities an asset from held for sale to
held for distribution or vice versa and cases in which
held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued

[FRS 7 Additional guidance to clarity whether a
servicing contract is continuing involvement in a
transferred  asset,  and  clarification  on  offsetiing
disclosures in condensed interim financial statements
[AS 9 — Clanfy that the high guality corporate bonds
used in estimating the discount rate for post-employment
benetits should be denominated in the same currency as
the benefits to be paid

1AS 34 — Clarify the meaning of elsewhere in the interim
report and require a cross-reference. There is immaterial
impact of this amendment to the Group Financial
Statements.

1 January 2016

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
R HB52
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JULIUS BERGER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2, Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR5) (Conlinued)
22 The following revisions to accounting standards and pronouncements were issued but not effective at the
reporting period (Earlier application is permitted in some cases).
Pronouncement MNature of change Reguired to be
implemented for
periods beginning

on or after

IFRS 9

Financial Instruments IFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued in July 2014 is the [ASE'S I January 2038
replacement of [AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. The [ASE completed its project to replace
IAS 39 in phases, introducing a fair value through other
comprehensive income measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments. The completed [FRS @ as revised in
2014 contains the requirements for: 1) The classification and
measurement of financial assets and labilities
2} Impairment methodology
3) General hedge accounting. The version of [FRS 9 issued in
2014 supersedes all previeus versions and is mandatorily
effective for perinds beginning on or after January 1, 2018
with early adoption permitted. For periads beginning before
January 1, 2018, previous versions of [FRS % may be adopted
provided the relevant date of initial application is before
February 1, 2015.

IFRS 15
Revenue from Contract This IFRS establishes a single comprehensive model for 1 January 2018
with Customers entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers, 1t is intended to supersede the
following standards;
* |AS 18 revenue
* [AS 11 construction contracts
¢ [FRIC 13 customer lovalty programs
* [FRIC 15 agreements for the construction of real estate
= |[FRIC 18 transfer of assets from customers; and
* S5IC 31 revenue barter transactions involving advertising
services,
The new standard introduces a 5-step approach o revenue
recognition and measurement with more prescriptive

guidance and requirements for extensive disclosures:

+ R ool i
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2. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

22 The following revisions to accounting standards and pronouncements were issued but not effective at the

JULILS
R 6832

reporting period {Earlier application is permitted in some cases).

Pronouncement Mature of change Required to be
implemented for
periods beginning
on or after
IFRS 16: Leases | This IFRS specifies how a reporfer will recognise, measure, 1 January 2019

present and disclose leases. The Standard provides a single

lessee accounting model, requiring lessees Lo recognise assels

and liabilities tor all lease unless the lease term 15 12 months or

less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue

to classify leases as operating and finance, with IFES 16's

approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from

its predecessor. Farly application of [FRS 16 Leases is

permitted only for companies that also apply [FRS 15 Revenue

from Contracts with Customers.

Amendments to [AS T This amends [AS 7 Statement of Cash flow to clarify that 1 January 2007
Disclosure [nitiative entities shall provide disclosures that enable users of the
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising

from financial activities.

Amendments to 145 12 lhe amendment 1o [TAS 12 Income Taxes clarifies the following 1 Janunary 2017
Recopnition of Deferred aspects: Unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at
Tax Assels for fair value and measured at cost for tax purposes give rise toa
Unrealised Losses deductible temporary dilference regardless of whether the

debt mstrument's holder expects o recover the carrying
amaunt of the debt instrument by sale or by use. The carrying
amount of an asset does not limil the estimation of probable
future taxable profits, Estimates for fulure taxable profits
exclude tax deductions resulting from the reversal of
deductible temporary differences. An enlily assesses a deferred
tax asset in combination with other deferred tax assets. Where
tax law restricts the utilisation of tax losses, an entity would
assess a deferred tax asset in combination with other deferred

tax assets of the same 0y pe

Amendments to IFRS 2 This clarifies the standard in relation to the accounting for cash 1 January 2018
Classification and settled share-based payment tfransactions that include a
Measurement of Share- performance  condition, the classificaion of share-based
based Payment payment transaclions with net settlement features, and the
Transactions accounting  for  moedifications share-based  payment

Lransactions from cash-settled to equity-settled

BERGER NIGERIA PLC
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3. Significant accounting policies

31

32

33

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC

R 6852

Statement of compliance
The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis of preparation

The consalidated and separate financial statements are prepared on a historical cost. The following are the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group in the preparation of these financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements in Nigerian MNaira (the functional currency
of the Group) have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (1ASH) and adopted by the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (FRUN) and as applicable,
the Companies and Allied Matters Act ({TAMA), Cap C20, LEN 2004.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period.

The estimates and assumptlions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future period.

Basis of consolidation

I'he consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controfled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company;

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has right, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its refurns

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if the facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above,

When the Company has less than the majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
invesiee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumslances in assessing whether or
not the Company’s voting rights in the mvestee are sutficient to give power, including;

- the size of the Company’s holding of the voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holding of
other vote holders

- potential voting rights held by the Company, other holders or other parties;
rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meeting,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses contral of the subsidiary. Specitically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed off during the vear are included in the consolidated financial statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to control
the subsidiary,

Prafit ar loss and each component of the other comprehensive income attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies,

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cashflows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consclidabion.
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JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

3. Significant accounting policies {Continued)

3.3.1 Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrving amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference betweern.

the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and

- the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill}, and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-cantrolling interests

When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive meome and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the relevant assets (ie. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to refained
carnings as specified by applicable 1IFRSs). The tair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when contral is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
[AS 39,

3.4 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition methed, The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, habilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acguisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are

recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 and 1A5 19 respectively;

- liahilities or equity mstruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
pavment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree {if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity's net assets in the event of liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree s identifiable net assets, The
choice of measurernent basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non<controlling
interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.
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B JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

34 Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination,
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill, Measurement period adjustments
arc adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement peried” (which cannot
exced one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity, Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with 1AS 39, ar [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equiby interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control} and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of,

If the inital accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination accurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete,
[hose provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information oblained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

e

Acguisition of interests from non-controlling shareholders
[TOH 11T 4

Acguisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions within equity. There is no
measurement to fair value of net assets acquired that were previously attributable to non-controlling
shareholders.

35 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisttion of a business 15 carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or Groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If
the recaoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrving amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata based on the carrving amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
perinds. On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss an disposal.

36 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced with
estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances, Revenue is recognised when the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the entity. However, when an uncertainty arises about the collectability of an amount already
included in revenue, the uncollectible amount, or the amount in respect of which recovery has ceased to be
probable, is recognised as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.6
3.1

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Goods and services

3.6.2

a7

3.8

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
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Sale of goods: Revenue from the sale of poods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed
and the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement o the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold. Revenue represents the net invedce value of sales to third
partics and it is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred
to the buyer.

Rendering of services: Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the period the services are rendered,
Revenue is recopnised only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the entity,

Revenues from other income generated from refunds and recoveries by insurance companies and other
regulatory bodies are recognized when net cash is received.

Construchion contracts
When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference Lo the stage of completion of the confract activity at the reporting date, measured based on the
proportion of work completed o date relative to the estimated total contract amount. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they can be reliably measured and its
receipt is considered probable.

Where the oulcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurered that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Gross amount due from customers

This represents work-in-progress (valued on the basis of engineers’ estimate of the quantum of work done but
not yet certified) plus recognised profits less recognised losses. Claims receivable arising on conlracts are
normally taken to income when agreed. In the case of unprofitable contracts, full provision is made for
anticipated future losses after taking into account a prudent estimate of claims arising in respect of such
contracts,

Advance payments received

Advanced pavments received are amounts received before the related work is performed and are assessed on
initial recognition to determine whether it is prebable that it will be repaid in cash or another financial asset. In
this instance, the advance payment is classified as a non-trading financial liability that is carried at amortised
cost, It it is probable that the advance payment will be repaid with goods or services, the liability is carried at
nistoric cost.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifving assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
ko the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale,
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All pther borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IY)

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.10 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, it any,
Self-produced assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss, Cost includes direct costs, appropriate allocations of materials and
other overheads associated with the production of the assets, pruf‘essi&na] fees and, for L‘{uﬂ|i[}-‘i!‘lf_’; assoets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
Maintenance, repairs, and renewals are generally charged to expense during the financial period in which they
are incurred. However, major renovations are capitalised and meluded in the carrving amount of the asset
when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance
of the existing asset will flow to the Group.
Mo depreciation to land and capital work in progress applies,
Losses or gains on disposals of assets are recognised in the Profit or Loss under ‘other gains and losses’.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost or valuation of assets [other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Residual values Useful lives
("} on cost {vears)

Building 10 25
Plant and machinery 5 10
Other fixed assets 5 8
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
aof an item of property, plant and equipment 15 determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrving amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss,

3101 Capitalisation
Expenditure related to an acquisition or repair is capitalized only if it extends the usetul lives or increases the
production capacity of the assets in question. The identification of such expenses is based on a certain criteria
identified by management and/or threshold reviewed from time to time, The criteria as set in the preparation
of these financial statements are as follows;

3011 Items to capitalise
« Any purchase of a piece of equipment (i.e, office furniture, machinery, equipment, etc.) of not less than

M1,500,000.

»  Expenditures in the nature of repairs of not less than™ 1,300,000,
*  Computer and related equipment of not less than N1,300,000.
»  Expenditure on building of not less than N1,500,000.

3.10.1.2 [tems to be expensed
+  Any item that will not last more than 12 months should be currently expensed when used.
s Any purchase of a piece of equipment {i.e. office furniture, machinery, equipment, etc.) that is less than

N, B00,000.
¢ Expenditures in the nature of repairs can be expensed if less than N1,500,000.
+  Computers and related equipment that is less than 1,500,000,
JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2006 FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
311  Investment property

All property classified as investment property are measured at cost. Investment property is recognized when it
is probable that the company will enjoy the fulure economic benefits which are attributable to i, and when the
cost or fair value can be reliably measured. Costs include directly attributable expenditure such as legal fees
and property transfer taxes,
Transfers o or from investment property is made only when there is a demonstrated “change in use” as a
result of a transler;

- From investment property to owner-occupied property, when owner-occupation commendces;

- From imwvestment property lo imveniories, on commencement of dl“'r‘{‘!ll.'.lpj'l.'lel'lt with a view to sale;

- From anowner-occupied property to inveshnent property, when owner-occupation ends;

- Of inventories to mvestment property, when an operating lease to a third party commences; or

- OF property in the course of d{wclnpmem or construction to investment property, at end of the

construction or development.

An investment property is derecognized on dispesal or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future cconomic benetits are expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses arising on the disposal or
relirement of an investment property is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss for the period

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of investment properties less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight line method, Where such investment properties are revalued, depreciation
is recognized over the useful life of the asset in a pattern which best reflects the consumption pattern over the
estimated useful life of such assets

3.12  Non current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal Groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, This condition is regarded
as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset (or disposal Group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected
Lo qualifv for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Nom-current assets (and disposal Groups) classified as held for sale are measured al the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

313 Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

3131 The Group as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment cutstanding in respect of the leases,
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3132 The Group as lesses
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as asseis ot the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated and separate statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.
Lease pavments are apportioned between Hnance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability, Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless theyv are directly attributable Lo qualifying assets, in whi h case they are
capilalised i accordance with the Group's peneral policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, excepl
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter mto operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recogrused as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systemalic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'TH)

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

5.14

3.14.1

3.14.2

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable, non-menetary asset that has no physical substance. An intangible asset is
recognised when it is identifiable; the Group has control over the asset; it is probable that economic benefits
will flow to the Group; and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
astimated useful lives, The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis,
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Internallv-generated intangible asse

- Research and development expenditure

2143

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred, An
internally-generated intangible asset arising from development {or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised when all of the following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable future econemic benefits;

- the availabilitv of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to

use or sell the intangible assel; and

- the ahility to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria lsted above. Where no
mternally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss
in the peried in which it is incurred. Subseguent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are

reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately,

3.15
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mtangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date [which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial
recognition, infangible assels acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accoumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately,

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising {from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Met realisable value is the amount that can be
realised from the sale of the inventory i the normal course of business after allowing for the costs of
realisation.

In addition to the cost of materials and direct labor, an appropriate proportion of production overhead that
have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition is mcluded in the
inventory values. An allowance is recorded for excess inventory and obsolescence is based on the lower of cost
or net realisable value.

Cost is determined using standard cost, which approximates actual cost, on a First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
316 Taxation
Taxatlion represents the sum of income tax pavable and deterred tax,

3461  Income and deferred tax tor the yvear
Income and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items thal are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the income and deferred fax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where income lax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

3162 Income tax
laxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement because some items of income or expense
are taxable or deductible in different vears or may never be taxable or deductible, The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated based on Companies Income Tax Act (CAP C24 LFN 2004) as amended to date and tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date,

3163 Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated and separate financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assels are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred Lax assets and labilities are not recognised if the lemporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit
Provision for deferred taxation is made by the liability method and calculated at the tax rate that applies
during the period of reversal on the differences between the net book value of qualifving property, plant and
equipment and their corresponding tax written down values. Also consideration is given for provision for
retirement benefit which have not been paid in the year.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the lability is settled or
the asset realised based on the tax rates enacted by the end ot the reporting period.

317 Foreign currencies
All transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Waira at the rate of exchange ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary items are converted to Naira at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All
dilferences arising there from are taken to the profit or loss.
NMon-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monstary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
For the purposes of presenting consolidated and separate financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into Currency Units using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates Muctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, it any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity {attributed to |'|m1-|L'nn|'rcznll1'r1i-rI interests as upp]'nprtale‘;
Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities acquired arising on the acquisition of
a foreipn operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting, peried. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,

318 Dividends
Dividends on ordinary shares to shareholders are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid or,
if earlier, approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

3181 Unclaimed dividerd
Segrepaled accounts are maintained for unclaimed dividends and are recoverable by shareholders within
twelve years and actonable only when declared. Any amounts standing to the credit of unclaimed dividend
are invested separately while amounts unclaimed after twelve years are taken to retained earnings in line with
CAMAL
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- . JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
3.19 Retirement benefits
3191  Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employvees have
rendered service entitling them to the contribulions.

Retirement benefit plans for members of staff are structured through a defined contributory pension scheme,
which is independent of the Group's finances and is managed by Pension Fund Administralors. The scheme,
which is funded by contributions from both emplovees and employer at 8% and 10% respectively, is consistent
with the Pension Reform Act 2004,

3.19.2  Defined benefit plan
For defined retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out periodically so that a provision for the present value
of the estimated cost for linbilities due at the reporting date m respect of employees’ terminal gratuities based
on qualifying years of service and applicable emoluments as per operating collective agreement is being made
inn the statement of financial position,

320 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and [linancial labilities are initially measured at fair value,
Transacton costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in peolit or loss.

3.20.1  Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the fime frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

320011 Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (includimg all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the nel carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective mterest basis for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "investment income” line item,

Classification of financial assets

[
11
=
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The Group's financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets "at fair value
through profit or loss’, ‘held-to-maturity” investments, ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets and ‘loans and
receivables’. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets,

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to- maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any impairment,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable pavments that are not
guoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
sharl-term receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The assels in this category include trade
and other receivables, contract receivables and retentions, cash and cash equivalents,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

[E)) JuLius BERGER

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

[rade and other receivables

Trade and ather receivables are initially recognised at fair value, and are subsequently classified as loans and
receivables and measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, The provision for
impairment of trade and ather teceivables is established when there is objective evidence thal the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original terms of the credit given and includes an
assessment of recoverability based on historical trend analyses and events that exisl al reporting date, The
amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying value and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition,

Contract receivables and retentions

Contract receivables and retentions are initially recognised at fair value, and are subsequently classified as
loans and receivables and measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Contract
receivables and tetentions comprise amounts due i respect of certified or approved certificates by the client or
consultant al the reporting date for which payment has not been received, and amounts held as retentions on
certified certificates at the reporting date. Conlract receivables are stated after deduction of specific allowance
for any debt considered doubtful of collection, The allowance for bad and doubtful debts is based on the
estimated irrecoverable which is determined based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical
EXPETIETILL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafts are not offset against positive bank balances unless a legally enforceable
right of offset exists, and there is an intention to settle the overdraft and realise the net cash simultaneously, or
to settle on a net basis, All short term cash investments are invested with major financial institutions in order to
manage credit risk,

3.20.1.3 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assels denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting, period. The foreign exchange component forms part of
its fair value gain or loss. Therefore, for financial assets that are classified as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange
component is recognised in profit or loss,

For foreign currency denominated debt instruments measured at amorlised cost al the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the financial assets
and are recognised in the "other gains and losses’ line item in the Profit or loss,

320,14 Impairment of financi:

Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting,
perind. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
ar more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows
of the asset have been atfected.
Ohbjective evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation or
- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of linancial difficulties

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed pavments in the portfolic past the average credit period of 60 days, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the assel’s carrving amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows reflecting the amount of collateral and guarantee, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate,

_]L:l.l'..,ﬁ BERGER MIGERIA PLC 015 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RC 6852 32




B JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued}

3.20.2

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrving amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a lrade recervable is considered uncollectible, it is written-off against the allowance
account.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited against the allowance account. Changes
in the carrving amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
lnss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received,

O derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrving
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in protit or loss,

Un derecognition of a financial asset that is classified as fair-value-through-other-comprehensive-income
(FVTOCT), the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is reclassified to retained earnings.

32121

L

Classification as debt or eguity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Eguity instruments
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An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a rtesidual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

JULIUS BERGER WIGERIA PLC

R BR2

Financial liabilities are classified as cither financial liabilities ‘at FYTPL" ar ‘other financial lHabilities’, The
Group does not have financial liabilities classitied as financial liabilities “at FVTFPL"

Oither financial liabilities

Oither financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounits) through the expected life of the
financial liability or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'DY)

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.202.4

3.21

3.02

3.24

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC

R 6H52

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the
end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised
cost of the instruments and are recognised in the "other gains and losses’ line item (note 8) in the profit or loss.
I'he fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period, For financial liabilities that are measured as
at FV'IPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in
profit or loss,

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and pavable, including anv non-cash assets transferred or Habilities assumed, is
recognised in profitor loss,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result
of a past event for which it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
abligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated o seftle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of moeney is
material}.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtunally certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or jeintly contrel the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party m making financial and operating decisions. Key
management personnel are also regarded as related parties. Key management personnel are those persons
having autharity and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly
or indirectly, including all executive and non-executive directors. Related party transactions are those where a
transfer of resources or obligations between related parties oceur, regardless of whether or not a price is
charged.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share (EPS) is
calculated by dividing the Total comprehensive income attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the yvear. Diluted earnings per share (DP5)
are calculated using fully diluted shares outstanding (i.e. including the impact of stock option grants and

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's business segments. The business segments are
determined by management based on the Group’s internal reporting structure. The determination of the
Group's operating segments is based on the organisation units for which information is reported to the
Group's management. The Group has three divisions, Building, civil and Services. The three divisions have
separate management and reporting structures and are considered separately reportable operating segments.
These consist of corpoerate headquarters, including
the Corperate Executive Committee, corporate communications, corporate human resources, corporate

a0

Certain headquarter activities are reported as “Corporate,

finance, including treasury, taxes and pension fund management, corporate legal and corporate safety and
environmental services.

2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3




JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'DY)

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.258

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing related products or
services (business segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
{geographical segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments,
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

Transfer prices between operating segments are set on an arm’s length basis. Operating assets and liabilities
consist of property, plant, and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, trade receivables/payables,
inventories and other assets and liabilities, such as provisiens, which can be reasonably attributed to the
reported operating segments. Non-operating assets and liabilities mainly include current and deferred income
tax balances, postemployment benefit assets /labilities and financial assets/liabilities such as cash, marketable
securities, investments and debt.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrving amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 15 estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basts can be identified,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assel (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Transfer pricing
Transachons between entities in the Group and all connected persons are carried on in a manner consistent with
the arm’s length principle using the appropriate transfer pricing method.

Decommissioning provisions

The provision for decommissioning serves to cover the costs associated with the decommissioning of assets,
Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using
estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset, The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or
in the discount rate applied for existing obligations are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset,
Estimated future costs for decommissioning obligations arising after the related asset is brought into use are
recognised in the Profit or loss.

Financial income and cost

Financial income comprises interest income on funds invested, dividend income, net gains on the disposal of
held-for-sale financial assets, net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net gains
an the re-measurement to fair value of any pre-existing available-for-sale interest in an acquiree, and net gains
on hedging instruments that are recognized in the Profit or loss.

Financial costs on the other hand represent interest on loans, overdraft and related facilities.

Interest income and cost is remgni:zed on accrual basis in the Statement of income, using the effective interest
method. Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of income on the date that the Company’s right to
receive pavment is established, which in the case of quoted securities s normally the ex-dividend date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IY)

4. Critical judgements areas and estimation of key sources of uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting palicies, which are described in note 3, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other spurces. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlyving assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision atfects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,

4.1

4.1,

4.1

4

4.2

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC

b

Critical judgments in applying the Group's accounting policies

[he following are the critical judgements, apart from those invelving estimations (which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Income taxes

The group is subject to various forms of taxes, Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income and other related taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax cutcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

FRevenue recognition

The group uses the percentage-of-completion methad in accounting for its fixed-price contracts to deliver
civil, design and engineering services. Use of the percentage-of-completion methoed requires the group to
estimate the services performed to date as a proportion of the total services to be performed,

Allowance for doubttul debts/ receivables

lhe Group has recognised allowances for credit losses on receivables by assessing the credit quality of
individual customers, roceivables that are in dispute, financial standing of customers and the willingness of
the customers to pay. Management believes that except for the receivables on which allowance has been
made, all other receivables are recoverable despite their age because they are mainly due from various
government and government entities.

Review of the useful lives of tangible assets

The directors believe that the consumption pattern on items of property, plant and equipment is such that
the book value is spread equally over the useful life of the assets, The judgment exercised is based on past
experience with similar assets, technoelogical obsolescence and -.{r-rllﬂlng residual values.

Write down of inventories to MNet realisable value
Management has written down inventories that are obsclete to a nil value after considering the non-
movements of these inventery items for two (2) vears, Wrile-back of previous allowances on inventory are

effected when the items are I;uhﬁ{\',luenﬂ}' pul into use.

Kev sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial
reparting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

R 6852
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B JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

4.21 Provision for gratuity
Within the Group, Julius Berger Nigeria PLC {the company) operates an unfunded defined benetit scheme
which entitles staff who put in a minimum qualifying working period of five years to gratuity upon leaving
the employment of the Company, 1AS 19 requires the application of the Projected Unit Credit Method for
actuarial valuations. Actuarial measurements involve the making of several demographic projections
regarding mortality, rates of employee turnover etc and financial projections in the area of future salaries
and benefit levels, discount rate, inflation etc.

4.2.2 Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Management considered several factors to assess items of property, plant and equipment for impairment,
some of which includes the physical damage caused by accidents, technological obsolescence, decline in
value etc. The individual assets carrving values were compared with their recoverable amount and
impairment losses have been recognised on those assets. In determining fair value less cost to sell,
management has derived fair value information from the sales proceeds received on similar assets. This is
the best information available to reflect the amount that the Group could obtain, at the end of the reporting
period, from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length fransaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

3. Segmental analysis

The management is the Group's chief operating decision-maker. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the information reviewed by the management for the purposes of allocating resources and
assessing performance. The management assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a measure
of adjusted EBITDA. This measurement basis excludes investment income, finance costs and taxes. These income
and expenditures are not allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven by the central treasury function,
which manages the cash position of the Group.

lulius Berger Nigeria Plc has three divisions which offer construction, civil engineering, building and facility
management services to third parties across Nigeria. Julius Berger Nigeria Plc is organised by division, each of
which is managed separatelv and considered to be a reportable segment. The Managing Director together with
senior executive management are members of the management and they regularly review the performance of
these divisions, Details of the services offered by these divisions are provided in the business and financial
review,

5:1 lhe principal segment activities are
Civil works

The segment is responsible for provision of professional services in the areas of engineering, construction
and maintenance of various infrastructures, These activities are evidence in the realisation of the Abuja
master plan, and developments in the essential fratfic network in and around the cities of Lagos and Uyo,
At the coastal areas, the works include the conmstruction of turnkey harbors, wharfs, jetties, loading
installations and warehouses. The segment also builds or refurbishes airports in conformity with strict
global aviation regulations. For the oil, gas and energy sector, the segment is responsible for design and
construction of auxiliary buildings for factories, oil and gas installations and power stations.

Building works

As a leader in its field, the segment has the specialised knowhow needed to construct buildings that meet
the Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEEDY) standards for certification. The segment is
responsible for the designing and building of administration; commercial and industrial buildings, hotels,
hospitals, airport terminals, sports facilities and residential districts. Under this segment is a furniture
production unit which supplies high quality furniture and interior fittings.

Services

The segment provides forward looking facility management solutions, which ensure the useful life of a
building is extended and maintenance costs are significantly reduced. Available through the segment is a
computer assisted facility and resource management, aimed at optimising workflow and process
controlling and reducing operating costs,
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52 Revenue
Class of business;
Civil works
Building works
Services

Total revenue

5.3 [Profit/loss and results
Class of business:
Civil works
Building works
Services
Total profit of segments
Caorporate costs
EBIDTA
Finance costs
Adjusted (loss)/profit before tax
Other items
(Loss)/Profit before income tax

Motes

5.3.1 Corporate costs comprise the costs of operating head office functions and certain overheads.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Group Company

31/12/2006 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
N'000 N'D00 N'000 N'000
72,784,348 75,830,524 72,784 348 72437 567
58,872,019 46,644,136 46,857,226 46,633,975
7,236,485 11,323,914 171,818 170,999
138,993,752 133,807 574 119,813,392 119,242 541
13,040,476 9,174,164 12,047,952 4,617,301
3,319,109 2,335,041 6,879 489 2,636,521
432,669 304,389 163,436 02,636
16,792,254 11,813,594 19,090,877 7,316,458
(12,790,718) B95,268 (14,632,384) 1,388,584
4,001,536 12,508,982 4,458,493 8,705,042
(5,784,246) (6,148,772) (5,784,246) (6,148,772}
(1,782,710) 6,360,210 (1,325,753} 2,556,270
284,681 139,763 86,502 3,678,008
(1,498,029) 6,499,973 (1,239,251) 6,234,338

5.3.2 EBITA is earnings before investment income, finance costs and taxes,

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit before tax earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs and directors' salaries, investment income, other gains and losses
as well as finance costs. This is the measure reported to the management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

54 Information about major customers

Included in the revenue reported by Group are three clients whose individual balances of N23.25 billion (2015
N32.27 billion), N15.5% billion (2013 Nil) and N13.86 billion (2015: N18.77 billion) represent more than 10% of the
total revenue reported by the Group. No other single client contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue for

2016.
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55 Revenue

Class of business:
Civil works
Building warks
Services

Metcash

Unallocated assets/ (liabilities)

Class of business:
Cavil works
Building works
Services

Net cash

Unallocated assets/ {liabilities)

31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Group

31 December 2015

Segment Segment Segment net Segment Segment Segment net
assels liabilities assets/ assets liahilities assets/
liabilities liabilities

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
73,489,537 (73,758,973} (22694386} &7, 763,997 (70804129 (3.040,132)
44,315,208  (46,805,696)  (2,490488) 40,862,628  (43,744475) (2,881,847
115,439,173 (64,558,809, 50,880,364 106,445,354 (60,336,486) 46,108 868
233243918 (187,123478) 46120440 215071979 (174,885090) 40,186,889
10,584 522 (33,172,798) (22.,588,276) 13,360,038 (24,807,936 (11,447 898)
15,350,492 (13,566 341) 1,784,151 16,654,253 (21.101,289)  {4447,036)
259,178,932 (233,862,617} 25316,315 245,086,270 (220,7%4,315) 24,291,955

Company
31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Segment Segment Segment net Segment Segment Segment net
assets liabilities assets/ assets liabilities assets/
liabilities liabilities

N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
70,656,946  (76,855394)  (6,198,448) 67929667  (74046411)  (6,116,744)
39,929,052 (44,759,223  {4,830,171) 38,387 836 (43,123,321)  (4.735485)
113,490,387 (72,341,220 41,149.067 109109787 (69,697,225) 39412 562
224 076,385  (193,955,837) 30,120,548 215427290 (186,866,957) 28,560,333
6,229,515 (33,172,798) (26,943,285) 10,148,623 (24.807.930)  (14,659313)
22,092,509 (12.124,687) 9,967,822 22,182,142 (174247100 4,757 432
252,398,409 (239,253,322) 13,145,087 247758055 (229.099.603) 185,658,452

The amounts provided to the management with respect Lo total assets are measured in a manner consistent with that of
the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical location of

the assets,

Unallocated net assets/ (liabilities) principally comprise assets/ (liabilities) which are not categorised as part of those of
the segments in the group. These are not directly attributable to the activities of the individual segments.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments the management
manitors the tangible and financial assets & liabilities attributable to each segment. All assets and liabilities are allocated
to reportable segments with the exceplion of current tax assets and deferred taxation assets, current tax liabilities and

retirement benefit, Assets used jointly by reportable segments are allocated on a rational basis after considering the

revenues earned by individual reportable segments.
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Revenue

Construction contracts

Fendering of services
fi)

Investment income
[nvestment income consists of interest income from:
Bank deposits

Dividend received

Other gains and losses
Praofit from sale of property, plant and equipment
et foreign exchange losses

Sundry income

Finance costs
[nterest on overdraft
[nterest an loan

Other finance charges

Profit for the vear

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging / (crediting):

Met foreign exchange losses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Dlepreciation of investment property

Mt impairment

Audit remuneration {see note 10.1)

Staff costs (see note 11)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

10.1 The total remuneration of the Group's auditor,

provided to the group is analysed below:

Audit fees:

FParent group

Subsidiaries auditors (Ernst & Young
and Akintola Williams Deloitte)
Other audit related fees

Audit and audit-related fees

Other fees:
Taxation
Others

Total fees

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Group Company
31122016 31,/12/2015 31/12/2016 3120205
N'000 MN'000 N'DOD N'000
131,657,267 120,981,205 119,813,392 119,242,541
7.330,485 12,826,369 - -

138,993,752 133,807,574 119,813,392 119,242,541
284,081 139,763 86,502 139,763

. - - 3,538,306
264,081 139,763 86,502 3,675,068
4,495,160 1,696,628 4,504,005 1,693,347
(5,704, 056) (367 .970) {4,902 358) (306,763)

2652419 (633,270) 210 -

1,443,523 695,388 (395,143) 1,358,584
3,961,048 4,306 334 3,961,048 4,306,334

1 498,676 1,214,931 1,498,676 1,214,931
324,522 627 507 324,522 627,507
5,784,246 6,148,772 5,784,246 6,148,772
5,704,056 367,970 4,902,358 A0A,7R3
B976,153 9,744 37 8,675,879 9,499 602
101,976 1,976 101,976 101,976
(1.617.525) 2,128,374 {1,690,092) 2,128,374
06,920 B28,023 54,420 48,750
52,560,237 41,652,397 36,643,791 31,210,927
(4,495,160) (1,6%0,628) (4,504,005) (1,693,347

Mexia Agbo Abel & Co and other professional firms for services

52,920 47,250 52,920 47,250
42 500 39275 - -
L5030 1,500 1,500 1,500
96,920 88,025 54,420 48,750
14,500 11,000 4,500 2000
250 350 250 250
111,670 99,375 59,170 56,000

2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40




& JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

. Group Company
. 11.  Staff costs and employee numbers 31/12/2016 311272015 31112/2016 311272015
N'000 N'000 N'00D N'000
. Wages and salaries 50,904,385 40,183,149 35,883,929 30,109,505
Social security costs 554 1,832 - -
. Defined benefit plans 1,051,880 450,529 242 /39 407,270
Defined contribution {pension schemes) a03,118 1,016,887 517,223 H94,152
. 52,560,237 41,652,397 36,643,791 31,210,927
. The average number of people employved was as follows: Number Number Number Number
Civil works 784 1,122 784 922
. Building waorks 4,621 3,600 4,114 4,838
Services 3,737 4,165 2,990 3517
. 9,142 10,887 7.588 a,.277
. The average number of employees in the services division includes managerial staff as well as executive management.
Number MNumber MNumber Mumber
. Managerial statt 119 115 o1 95
. Senior staff 1,001 1,167 387 350
Junior statf 8,022 9605 7,410 8,632
. 9,142 10,887 7,588 9277
. 12, Taxation
12.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss
. Current tax
Current tax expense in respect of the current yoar 1,417,845 5,566,478 1,395,660 5,235,578
. Education tax (2% of assessable profit) 6,078 540,270 - h34.522
- Adjustments in relation to the current tax of prior yvears 65,157 229778 - =
Deferred tax
- Deferred tax (credited)/charged in the current year B29.683 2,276,6093) 1,021,299 (2.372,434)
- Tetal income lax expense recognised in the current year 2,318,763 4,059,833 2,416,959 3,397 666
. The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
. (Loss)/ Prafit before tax from operations (1,498,029) 6,499,973 (1,239,251) 6,234,338
. Expecled income tax expense calculated at 30% (201 5:
30%) (449 .409) 1,930,080 {371,775) 1,870,302
. Education tax expense calculated at 2% (2015; 2%} of
assessable profit A, 078 540,270 = 534,522
. Effect of income that is exempt from taxation {68,805) (4.900,238) - (5.233,652)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in
. determining taxable profit 2,001,215 10,958,023 1,767 435 10,971,362
- Effect of unrecognised and unused lax losses now
recognised as deferred tax assols - - - -
- Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries and
adjustments - - -
. Dreferred tax expense recognised in the current vear 829,583 {4,704,080) 1,021,299 (4,744,868)
- Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 2,318,703 3,530,055 2,416,959 3,397 666
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation
. to the current tax of prior years - 229778 - -
. 2,318,763 4,059,533 2,416,959 3,397 666
I'he tax rate used for the 2016 and 2015 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 30% payable by corporale entities
. in Nigeria on taxable profits under the Companies Income Tax Act.
et
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12.2 Current tax liabilities

Income tax payvable

Lducation tax payable

12.3 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are
atiributable to the following;

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

The grass movement in deferred taxation
during the vear

Balance at beginning of year

Profit or loss charge

Tax charge relating to components of other
comprehensive income

Balance at end of year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Group Company

31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'00D
1,417,845 3,h66 47R 1,395,660 5,235,578
6,078 240,270 - 534,522
1,423,923 6,106,745 1,395,660 5,770,100

5,453,858 10,087,301 5,375,286 9,874,831
(9,185,562) (12,989,322) (9,090,213) (12,568,459)
(3.731,704) (2,902,021) (3,714,927) (2,693,628)
2,902,021 5178,714 2,693 628 3,066,062
792 829 {2,249.637) 984 445 {2,345,378)
36,854 (27,056) 3h,854 (27,.056)

3,731,704 2,902,021 3,714,927 2,693,628

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows;

Deferred tax - Group

Accelerated  Adjustments
Deferred tax liabilities tax & Fair value Others Total
depreciation zains
N 000 N'000 N'DOD N'000
Balance at 1 January 2016 13,824,688 (289.572) (343,794) 12,989,322
Charged Lo profit or loss (4,296,788} (52,7608) 545,794 (3,803,76()
Balance at 31 December 2016 9,527.900 (342,338) - 9,185,562
: Redipment Impairment Provisions
Deferred tax assets benefit Total
i & tax losses and others
obligation
N'000 ™00 N'000 000
Balance al 1 January 2016 (9EQ,633) (101 5,0605) (8,091,603) (10,087 ,301)
Charged to profit or loss 226,258 (3,389 643) 7459974 4,596,589
Charged to other comprehensive income - - 36,854 36,854
Balance at 31 December 2016 (454,375) (4,404,708) (594,775) (5,453,858)

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PPLC
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12.3 Deferred tax assets and labilities (Continued)

Deferred tax - Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D))

Accelerated  Adjustments
Deferred tax liabilities tax & Fair value Others Total
depreciation gains
N'000 N'000 N'D00 N'OOO
Balance at 1 january 2016 | 2,667 888 (99,429 12 5a8,459
Charged to profit or less (3,235,337 (242,909 - (3478,245)
Balance at 31 December 2016 9,432,551 (342,338) - 9,090,213
Retemes Impairment Provisions
Deferred tax assets benefit P Tuotal
s ¥ tax losses and others
obligation
N'O00 N000 N'000 N'000
Balance at 1 January 2016 (741,702) (1,003,407) (8,129.722) {9.874.831)
Charged to profit or loss 293,245 (3,40 301} 7070747 4,462,691
Charged to other comprehensive income - 36854 36834
Balance at 31 December 2016 (448,457 (4,404, 708) (522,121) {5,375,286)

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are shown on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other

compre hensive income.

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted

earnings per share are as follows:

Earnings
Farnings for the purpose of basic earnings
and diluted earnings per share being net
profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic and diluted

earnings per share

Farnings per Mk share (Maira) - Basic
& b ]

Earnings per 30k share (MNaira) - Diluted

[ULIUS BERGER NIGERLA PLC

AT AR5

Group Company
31122016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/122015
MN'000 MO0 N'000 N'000
3,015,014 1,759,887 3533,365) 2,656,300
1,320,000 1,320,000 1,320,000 1,320,000
2.28 1.33 (2.68) 2.01
228 1.33 {2.68) 2m
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& E! JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
14. Property, plant and equipment Plant & Other fixed
. ) Group Land Buildings Machinery assets Total
Cost: A3'000 Be 000 P "M I 'O N 000
- Asat 1 fanuary 2076 4976413 11,325.211 122,351,360 [,422.198 140,075,182
Additions f7 2, - - 22685 695 586
. Reclassifications 5760473 (376,473) = (10,578) (10.578)
Adjustment and exchange dilference - (1,847 (232,730) 509,424 274 827
- Msposal - {13.691,777) (240,007 {13,931,784)
. At 31 December 2016 6,225,787 10,746,891 108426833 1,703,722 127,103,233
- Accumulated depreciation:
Asatl January 2016 - 386,334 T22I9132 668,903 76,734,374
- Charge for the year 303,365 7.583.610 1,085,178 8,976,153
Adjustment and exchange difference 20,950 (194,179 341,983 168,754
- Reclassibication L4594 4,240 {15,257 {5,518)
Eliminated on disposals - (10,717,157 (1,108,977} (11.826,134)
- At 31 December 2016 - 4,172,153 0,595,046 975,830 74,043,629
Impairment:
. Balance at 1 January 2016 - 4,964,295 . 4,964 205
Charges for the year - - 72,567 72,567
- Reversal in the vear B - {1,650,092) - (1,690,002}
- Balance at 31 December 2016 - 3 3,274,203 72,507 3,346,770
Carrving amount
P Al 31 December 2016 6225787 6574738 36256984 655325 49712834
- At 31 December 2015 4,976,413 7478 A2 50,132,228 Th3,295 58,370,513
Company
- Cost:
Asatl January 2016 1,684 488 717547 121442852 235,76l 136,080,647
- Additions 672,901 - 11,897 684,798
Reclassifications 576473 (576,473) - . -
- Addjustmaent 32,820 {14, 7ad} 18,065
Disposal - - (13,069,777 (170,00 (13,861,786)
- At 31 December 2016 5,933,862 9.141,07 107,753,904 62 584 122,921,724
. Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss:
Asat ] January 2016 3,703,129 71,718,567 223,999 75,645,695
. Charge for the vear - 249 228 532,926 893,725 8,675,679
Adjustment - 32,829 (14,764) 18,065
- Eliminated on disposals - (10,717,157) (1,068,179 (11,785336)
- At 31 December 2016 o 3,952,357 68,567,165 34,7581 72,554,303
Impairment;
. Balance at 1 January 2016 - 4,964,295 - 4,964,295
. Charges tor the year # & 2
Reversal in the vear - - (1,680,012} {1,690,092)
. Balance at 31 December 2016 - - 3,274,203 - 3274203
Carrying amount
- At 31 December 2016 5,933,862 5,188,717 35,942 536 25,103 47,093,218
i At 31 December 2015 1684488 6014418 49,724,285 11,761 55,470,657
- Contractual commitment for capital expenditure
There were no capital commitments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment in the year,
. IS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 20016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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E

15. Mon currents assets held for sale
At the reporting date, property, plant and equipment of N1,545 million (2015: N1,493 million) were reclassified as
non-current assets held for sale, The assels are taken (o the sales vard once it has been determined that their value
will be realised Irom sale and not continuous use in the business operation by the Equipment Repair Centre and
siles is expected to be completed within one year.
16. Intangible assets Group Company
16,1 Goodwill 311272016 3122015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
N'000 MO0 N"000 N'000
Cost 4.6060,412 4606412 - =
Impairment 52,824 5
Exchange difference 3,689,512 434 772 % .
8,345,748 5.041,154 - -
The purchased goodwill above exist in the books of Julivs Berger International Gmbl, 1t is the Group's policy to
test goodwill for impairment annually and more frequently if there are mdications of impairment. Mo impairment
loss has been recognised as there are no indivations that the goodwill is impaired.
Group Company
16.2 Other intangible assets Licenses Total Licenses Total
Cost: DO N'000 N'DO0 N'000
As at ] January 2016 193,023 193,028 - L
Additions during the year 4,149 4,149 - :
Al 31 December 2016 197177 197177 = =
Accumulated amortisation:
Asat 1 January 2016 160316 160,316 = -
Charge for the vear 34,095 34,095 = &
At 31 December 2016 194,411 194,411 - =
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2006 2,766 2,766 = =
At 31 December 2015 32,712 32,712 = #
The other intangible assets represents software licences acquired as part of the net asset of Julius Berger
International GmbH. The amortisation of the useful life of the licenses is 3 vears,
Group Company
17. Investment property 31/1272016 317122015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Cost: N'000 N0 N'000 N'000
Asat] January 2742372 2,742,372 2,742,372 2,742,372
Additions during the year . - - %
At 31 December 2,742,372 1?4&,3?2— 2,742,372 2,742.372
Accumulated amortisation:
Asat 1 January 195,934 03 Sad) 195,936 93,9600
Charge [or the year 101,975 101,976 101,976 101,974
At 31 December 297,912 195,936 297,912 195,936
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2,444 460 2,546,436 2,444,460 2,546,436
Investment property is carried at cost and depreciated using the straight line method, The estimated useful life of
the investment property is 23 vears.
The investment property comprises a number of commercial properties that are leased to related and third parties.
The annual rent received from the investment property is approximately N8 million per annum,
JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2006 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 0832 43




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

JULIUS BERGER

Group Company
18. Investments in subsidiaries 31/122006 311272005 3171202006 31/12/2015
N'000 N'0D00 N'000 N'000
Asat | January - = 15,193,398 13,151,581
Additions during the year - - 2,061 817
Disposals - - -
At 31 December - - 15,193,398 15,193,395

Investments undertakings are recorded at cost which is the fair value of the consideration paid.

Details of the parent's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

|I\'ame of subsidiaries Principal activity Place of incorporation | Proportion of ownership
| and operation interest and voting power
E held by the parent group
| 2016 2015
| Abumet Nigeria Limited [Manufacturers  and  dealers  in Abuja, Nigeria oo, o0
| aluminium, steel, iron or other

structural products of such nature.
IJ_LJLJI.U‘_-E Berger Services Froviders of ports  services, Abuja, Nigeria 100% 100 %
MNigeria Limited stevedores, cargo superintendents,

port management, warehousemen,

agents and proprietors of

warehouses.
Julius Berger Medical ~ [Health care  providers for  the Abuija, Nigeria 100% 100%
Services Limited operation  of  medical  service

institutions and all form of medical

and health care services.
PrimeTech Design and |Engineers, planning, design, Abuja, Nigeria 100 [0
Engineering Nigeria ||.'E'{"1.--.":|0pj's'|-.":|1[ construction and|
Limited maintenance of engmeering works)

|and products of all description.
Julius Berger [Investment company and managers, | Abuja, Nigeria 100% 100%
[nvestments Limited
Julius Berger Providers of logistical and technical Abuja, Nigeria 100% 100%
International GmbH support on an international level,
Julius Berger Free Zone  |Planning and construction  of all Abuja, MNigeria 100% 100%
Enterprise Calabar kinds and aspects of  civil

engineering  works  and  related

activities as well as maintenance of

buildings and facilities i Free Trade
. Lones,

JULILS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
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19, Inventories

Construction materials
Consumables

Spares

(Others

Allowances (19.7)

191 Inventory is stated net of allowances for
obsolescence, an analysis of which 5 as
follows;

Balance at beginning of year
Amount (written back)/charged to profit or loss
Balance at end of year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'DY)

Group Company

3/122016 31,/12/2015 31/12/2016 3112/2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
3,832,061 3,484,269 2,386,019 2,589,532
2,263,424 2,400,525 1,493,047 1,481,724
5,353,228 1872969 4,992,500 4,484,729
356,135 478,534 335,288 445 486
11,804,868 11,237,297 9,206,854 9,001,471
(105,342) (127,181) (41,257) [£3,048)
11,699,526 11,110,116 9,165,557 8,938,423
127,181 142,752 63,048 74874
(21,839 15,571} (21,751) (11,828)
105,342 127,181 41,297 63,048

19,2 The cost of mventories recognised as an expense during the vear in respect of operations was N27.5 billion (31

December 2013: N30.7 hillion).

19.3 Tnventories have not been pledged as security for labilities.

20. Amount due from/to customers from construction contract

Construction costs incurred plus recognised profits
less recognised losses to date
- Less: progress billings

Recognised and mcluded in the consalidated and
separate [inancial statements as amounts:

[Due from customers under construction contracts

Due to customers under construction contracts (20.1)

201 Gross amounts due to customers:
Current Portion

Non-current Portion

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
RC 6852

756,237,763 770494593 753,136,696 770,494,593
(866,263,468)  (883,150,123) (866,263,468)  (883,372,102)
(110,025,705)  (112,655,530) (113,126772) (112,877,509)

33,082,455 27,228,427 29,637,665 27,204,457
(143,108,160)  (139,883.857) (142,764437)  (140,081,967)
(110,025,705) (112,655,530) (113,126,772)  (112,877,510)

24,009,265 32912602 23,665,542 28,737,461

119,098,895 106,971,355 119,008,895 111,344,506
143,108,160 139,883,957 142,764,437 140,081,967
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CGroup Company
21. Trade and other receivables 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31122015
Trade receivables N'0O0 N'000 MN'000 N'000
Contract and retention receivahles {note 21.5) 102,069,780 84,713,910 09,252,017 82,042,749
Receivables from rendering of services - - - .
Less: Allowance for doubtful debt (note 21.3) (9,439,523 (10,056 408) (9.304437) (8,600,857)

92,630,257 74,657,501 59,948,480 73,351,892
Other receivables

Supplier advances 8,169,752 7734403 6,849 541 7.217.163
Amount owed by related entities [note 31.2) - - 4,631,755 4,031,348
Amount owed b}' staff debtors 137.561 FB.Y928 107,556 .96
Prepayments and accrued income 1,965,200 2804 5237 1,908,588 2,414,601
Other receivables 5,957,995 4,313,009 5,611,193 4,313,004

108,860,765 89,478,365 109,057,513 91,398,927

Analysed as follows

urrent Portion 108,291,146 A8.634, 246 108,507,194 90,534,805

Mon-current Portion 5pY. 619 844,122 550319 544,122
108,860,765 59,478,368 109,057,513 91,398,927

Trade receivables expected to be recovered within one vear include retentions of Nil {2015; N989 million) relating o

contracts in progress.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

The Group has recognised an allowance for doubtful debts (see note 21.3) against all receivables over & years because
management's continuous efforts to recover these debts is gradually becoming uncertain. Allowances for doubtful
debts are recognised against trade receivables based on management's assessment of the credit quality of individual
customers, receivables that are in dispute, financial standing of customers and the willingness of the customers to pay.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant charnge in credit quality and the amounts are more than 3 years outstanding are still considered recoverable.

211 Age of receivables that are past due but not
impaired
-3 vears 108 860,765 88414892 109,057,513 90,335,451
Above 3 years . 1,063,476 : 1,063,476
108,860,765 89,478,368 109,057,513 91,398,927

21.2 Age of receivables that are past due but impaired
0 -3 vears 4,254,141 3,935400 4,119,035 3,5935400
Above 3 vears 5,185,382 6,121,009 5,185,282 4,755,457
9,439,523 10,056,409 9,304,437 8,690,857

Based on past experience, the group believes that no material impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
trade recervables not past due.

213 Allowances for credit losses

Balance at 1 January 10,056,409 1,303,129 8,690,857 1,234,825
Impairment logses r{"u:l;rgniﬁﬂ‘l on receivables (616,886} 8,827,600 613,580 7,530,352
Armounts written off during the vear as
uncollectible - (74,320) = {74,320)
Amounts recoverad during the yvear . = - -
Balance at 31 December 9,439,523 10,056,409 9,304,437 8,690,857
in determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the group considered changes in the credit quality of trade
receivables fram the date credit was initallv granted up to the end of the reporting period with emphasis on a
certificate by certificate basis.
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JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

21. Trade and other receivables (Continued)
214 Information about concentration risk

Trade receivable exposures are typically with the federal and state governments which are the major
customers of the group and credit risks are greatly minimised through forward funding where achievable.

Group Company
1.5 Contract and retention receivables 31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
Balance at 1 January 84,713,910 50,437,397 82,042,749 52,726,992
hMovements in the vear 17,355,870 34,276,513 17,210,168 20,315,757
Balance at 31 December 102,069,780 54,713,910 949,252,917 82,042,749
22, Tax receivable

Balance at 1 January 26,332,120 40,635,621 25,500,480 39,738,157
Movements in the vear 11,108,418 (6,692,934) 11,102,257 (6,725123)
Utilised as tax offset {5,298,472) (2,572,688) (5,235,576) {2.465,675)
32,142,066 31,359,999 31,376,161 30,547 359
Allowances {4,698,189) (5,037 879) (4,698,189) (5,037,879
Balance at 31 December 27443877 26,332,120 26,677,972 25,509,480

Made up as follows;
Current portion 1,417,845 5,566,478 1,395,660 5,235,578
Non-current portion 26,026,032 20,765,642 25282312 20,273,902

27 443,877 26,332,120 26,677,972 25,509,480

I'ax receivable include credit notes confirmed by the Federal Inland Revenue Service of N21.16 billion (2015: N5.22
hillion) relating to deductions of Withholding tax on approved certificates made by various clients and advance
payment of VAT on contract of N4.8 billion {2015: N9.7 billion). The remaining balance represents deductions on
withholding tax for which the credit notes have not been received and thus not confirmed by the Federal Inland
Revenue Service,

23, Issued capital and dividend

Share Capital (Mote 23.1) 660,000 BA0,000
Share Premium 425,440 425,440
1,085,440 1,085,440

331 The authorised share capital of the company is NE00,000 millien [2013: N800,000 million]. This comprises
1,600 million (2015: 1,600 million) ordinary shares of 50 kobo each, Issued and fully paid share capital
consists of 1,320 million (2015: 1,320 million) shares at 50 kobo each. All the erdinary shares rank parri passu
in all respects. To the company's knowledge and belief, there are no restrictions on the transfer of shares in
the company or an voting rights between holders of shares,

There was no movement in issued share capital during the period.
The directors would not be recommending to the members at the 47th Annual General Meeting, payment of
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
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Group Company
24. Non-controlling interest 31/122006 31/12/2M5 31/12/2016 314122015
N'000 N0 N'000 N'000
Balance at beginning of vear 57,180 670,660 - -
Share of profit for the vear (9,654) 225 - -
Share of fareign currency translation reserve e - =
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest (1.000) z 7 5
Purchase of non-cantrolling interest - [613,705) - -
Balance at end of vear 46,526 57,180 - -
25, Borrowings
Bank overdrafts (Note 25.1) 33,172,798 21,526,346 33,172,798 21,526,346
Term loan (Note 23.2) - 2,281,590 - 3,281,590

33,172,798 24,807,936 33,172,795 24,807,936

Made up as follows;
Current portion 33,172,798 24,807,936 33,172,798 24 807 936
Mon-current portion -

33,172,798 24,807,936 33172798 24,807,936

['he borrowing within the Group is represented by only the parent Company and therefore the same.

251 Bank overdrafts comprise various facilities obtained by the Group to meet import financing and
waorking capital requirements.

752 This represents a term loan secured from HSBC Bank London. The loan was to finance supply of capital
goods and related services with German expaorters up to a maximum aggregate amount of €62,720,000,
The loan was with a tenure of 4 years. Interest is payable half vearly at six months above EURIBOR plus
1.2 margin, 83% of the loan is secured by Hermes Euler Credit Recovery Insurance, The facility was
guaranteed by Zenith Bank Nigeria Ple. The repayment of the loan was completed in the year which
comprise of both principal and interest payments. These have been incorporated in these financial

statements.
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
2521 Term loan movement schedule 000 000
Balance at 1 January 3,281,590 6,142,082
Additions in the vear = =
Repayment in Lh-.;& year (3,281 590) (3.305,5978)
Exchange difference on translation = 445 456
Balance at 31 December - 3,281,590

Made up as follows;
Current portion E 3 281 590
Non-current portion - ~

- 3,281,590
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

JULIUS BERGER

26, Retirement benefit liabilities
26.1 Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefits for members of stall are structured through a defined contributory pension scheme, which is
independent of the Group’s finances and is managed by private pension lund administrators, The scheme, which is
funded by contributions from both employees at 8% and employer at 10% each of relevant emoluments, is

consistent with the Pension Reform Act 2014,

Staff pensions Group Company
31/12/2016 311272015 311272016 31122015
Caroup N'000 N000 N'000 N000
Balance at 1 [anuary 151,438 95,204 24,501 40,152
Provision during the year 603,118 L6887 517223 694,152
Remittance to pension fund administrators (7 15,423) [960,743) (514,578} (708, 803)
Balance at 31 December 39,133 151,435 27,146 24501
The total expense for the defined contribution plans
amounted to Nal3 million (2015 NLOLT million).
26.2 Defined benefit plan - Discontinued scheme 31/12/2016 3171272015 31122016 3171272015
MO0 W000 N'000 WN'000
Present value of unfunded defined henefit obligation 24634491 1,853,781 1,311,668 1,420,945

Dyeficit

Met actuarial gains/ (losses) nol rr-mgnjﬁs*d

Met liability arising from defined benetit obligation 2463491 1,853,751 1,311,665 1,420,945

Movements in the present value of the defined benefil

obligation in the current year were as follows.

Opening defined benefit obligation 1,853,781 1,596,506 1,420,945 1,606,929

Current service cost 591,646 129175 82,405 85,916

Interest on defined benefit obligation 160,234 186,096 160,234 156,056

Curtailment - 135,258 5 133,258

Actuarial gains/ losses due to experience adjustment (122,345) 180372 (122,845) 80,372

Payinents in the year (319,325) (7 73,6726) (229,071) (773,620)

Closing defined benefit obligation 2,403,491 1,853,781 1,311,668 1,420,945

Liability in the statement of financial position

Current portion 39,133 151,438 27146 24,501

Mon-current porbion 2,463,491 1,853,781 1,311,668 1,420,945
2,502,624 2,005,219 1,338,814 1,445 446

I he amount recognised in protit or loss and mchaded

within statf costs 1,654,998 1,467 416 759,862 1,101,422

The total amount is recognised in the vear analysed as

follows:

Statemnent of profit or loss:

Cost ot sales 891,046 129,175 82,405 85,916

Administrative expenses 7h3,352 1,338,241 677 A57 1,015,506
1,654,998 1467 416 759862 1,101,422

Other comprehensive mcome (122,845} 150,372 (122,845) 180,372
1,532,153 1,647,788 637,017 1,281,794
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2h. Retirement benefit liabilities (continued)

25,4 In the 2012 financial vear, an agreement was signed between the Company and the stafl union on staff
employments benefits pursuant to the termination of the old scheme under the National Joint Industrial Council
(NITC) agreement. The scheme is designed for the benefit of staff member with at 5 yvears continuous service for ex-
grafia and 10 vears continuous service for severance benefits.
There are no planned assets for the scheme as the group believe that these obligations can be supported in the
event they become payable. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost
and past service cost, were performed in-house and measured using the projected unit credit method.

[he principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows,

Valuation at

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

iy ne
Discount rate(s) 158 12.0
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 12.0 11.0
Average rate(s) of inflation 18.0 a.0
Mote: The discount rate used is the average yield on government securities.
Other assumptions:
- The scheme computation is based on the agreement with the staff unions;
- The basis of computation are in line with the exit bonus and ex-gratia pavments; and
- The death rate is ignorable as a minimal number of staff deaths while in service were recorded,
Ciroup Company
31/12/2016  31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
N'000 000 N'000 N'000
AMOUNEs recogmised M profis or loss in respect of
these defined benefit plans are as follows. 1,051 880 450,529 242 $39 407,270
The expense for the vear is included in the employes benefits expense in profit or loss,
27. Trade and other payables
Trade payables (27.1) 12,269,107 11,171,712 8,768,282 14,656,566
Amount owed to related entities (note 31.2) - s 27,705,980 18,870,288
Oither taxation and social security costs 7553013 3,709419 7244908 3,689,174
Aceruals and deferred income 11.353.005 9,329,792 5,802,271 5497115
Dividend payable 1,275,005 1,199,227 1,266,005 1,189,227
Other pavables 11,564,588 9,186,675 103,954 223,325
Trade and other payables 44,015,318 34,596,825 51,191,400 44,125,695

271 Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. For all the

suppliers, no interest is charged on the trade payables. The Company has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all pavables are paid within the pre-agreed credit ferms.

272 Other taxation and social security costs represent deductions of VAT on advances and withholding taxes from
suppliers and sub-contractors vet to be remitted to the Federal Inland Revenue Service,

The directors consider that the carrving amount of trade pavables approximates to their fair value,
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L JULIUS BERGER c (cONTD)
. Croup Company
28. Provisions 311272016 31/12/2015 31226 31/12/2015
A N'000 N'0DD N'000 N'000
Balance at beginuing of vear 404,308 2135,904 A00,000 -
- Provision ne longer required = (2,135,994) = s
Prowision for the vear 49,924 A0, 308 - 00,000
. Balance at end of year 454 232 404,308 300,000 300,000
Made up as follows;
- Current portion - - - =
MNon-current portion 454,232 4, 3008 300,000 300,
. 454,232 404,308 300,000 300,000
. 29, Reconciliation of profit to net cash provided by operating
activities
- Profit/ (loss) for the year 3,005,360 1,760,112 {3,533,363) 2,656,300
Adjustments for
- Investment income (284,681) (139,763) (86,502) (3,678,069)
Finance costs 5,784,240 6,148,772 5,784,246 6,148,772
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,976,153 9,886,440 8,675,874 9,499,602
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment {1,617,525) 2,125333 (1.690,092) 2,128,374
- Depreciation of investment property 101,976 101,578 101,976 101,976
Actuarial pains on retirement benefits {122,845 LB0,372 {122,8435) 180,272
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {4,495,160) (1,696,628) {4,504,005) (1,6495,347)
- Provision for VAT written off = (5,308, 748) = (6,308, 748)
Increase in provisions 49,294 2,058,832 - 2,231,732
. Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 11,396,818 14,116,494 4,625,292 11,324,964
. Tnerease)f decrease in inventories {58,410} 1,001,713 [227,135) BoL,566
{Increase)/ decreass in pross amount due from customers (5.854,028) 1,673,599 (2,433,208) 1,917,663
. Increase in trade and other receivables (19.382397)  (23,516,271)  (17,658,586) (23,203,911}
{Increase)/ decrease in tax receivable (1,111,757 14,160,213 (1,168,492 14,228,677
. Increase/ (decrease) in retirement benetit liabilities 497 405 1,373,133 (106,632 {200,636)
[mereass/ (decrease) in trade and other payables 9418 493 {3.543,628) 8,435,304 (3,666, 795)
- Increase in gross amount due o customers 3,224,203 3,371,878 2682470 12762477
Cash penerated by operations (2,400,673) B.637,135 (5,850.987) 14,023,003
. Movement in taxation (3,883,774) 356,702 (1,369,305) 553,879
Met cash from operating activities (6,2584.447) 8,993,837 (7,220,292) 14,576,884
29,1  Analysis of cash, cash equivalents and nel cash Group
- Exchange and
Balance at 1- non-cash Balance at 31-
. Jan-2016 Cash flow  movements Dec-2016
MO0 N'000 MO0 N0
- Cash and bank balances 13,360,038 2.775,516) - 10,584,522
Cash and cash equivalents 13,360,038 (2.775,518) 10,584,522
. Borrowings (24,807,936) (8,364, 862) (33,172,798)
(11,847,898)  (11,140,378) - (22,588,276)
Company
- Exchange and
Balance at 1- non-cash  Balance at 31.
- Jan-2016 Cash flow  movements Dec-2016
000 N 000 N N'000
. Cash and bank balances 101,148,623 {3,919,108) 6,229,515
Cash and cash equivalents 10,148,623 3,919, 108) - 6,229,515
- Borrowings (24807.5956)  (B364,862) (33,172,798)
(14,659,313)  (12,283,971) S (26,943,283)
. JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

30. Financial instruments
301 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a geing concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall
strategy is to thrive on quality in offering integrated construction solutions and services while maintaining its core
competence and efficient working capital management with low cost for funds.

The capital structure of the Group and Company consists of net debt (which includes the borrowings offset by cash
and cash equivalents) and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves
and retained earnings as disclosed in the relevant notes in the financial statements,

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a frequent basis to ensure that gearing is within
acceptable limit,

I'he gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

Group Company

31/12/2016 31122015 31122016 311272015

N'000 N'000 000 N DO

Dkt 33,172,798 24 807,934 33172,798 24 807 936
Cash and bank balance 10,584,522y  (13,360,038) (6,229,515)  (10,148,623)
MNet debt (i) 22,588,276 11,447,898 26,943,282 14,659,313
Equity (i) 25,316,315 24,291,955 13,145,087 13,658,452
Net debt to equity ratio 0.89 0.47 2.05 0.79

i. Deblis defined as current and non-current term borrowings as described in the appropriate note.

ii. Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group that are managed as capital,

30.2 Categories of financial instrumoents 311122016 31/12/2015 J1az22016 3152015
Financial Assets N'000 MO0 N'000 N'000
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables 102,207,341 B4,702 838 09 3p0473 86,145,011
Tax receivable 27 443,877 26,332,120 26677972 25,509,480
Amount due from customers under construction
contracts 33,082,435 27228427 29,637,665 27,204 457
Cash and bank balances 10,584,522 13,360,038 6,229,515 10,148,625

173,318,195 151,713,423 161905626  149,007.571

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost

Borrowings 33,172,708 24 807 936 33,172,798 24 BO7 U936
Retirement benefit liabilities 39,133 151,438 27,146 24,501
Trade and other ;‘.na:,ah]rq 44 015,318 34,590,825 51,191,400 44,125,695

77,227,249 59,556,194 54,391,344 68,958,132
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30, Financial instruments (continuwed)

313

M1
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3052
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Risk management

[he Group has an integrated risk management system that identifies and measures the impact of the risks it faces. Further
more, it establishes a framewaork to evaluate and counteract such risks through various control and monitoring
mechanisms. Such risks include market risk (foreign currency sk and anterest rate risk), credit risk and liguidity risk.

Wlarket risk management

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis and there has been nio change to the Group's exposure to
market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured.

[mterest rate risk management

The Group is exposed [0 interest rate risk from bank overdraft. Since it i repayable on demand, the carrying amount
reflects the fair value and the Group's exposure o interest risk as at the reporting date,

Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes fransactions denominaled in foreign currencies; conseguently, exposures te exchange rate

fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utilising forward foreign
exchangs contracts. The group utilises a currency mix with part agreement in Naira and part in either Euro or US Dollar
for contracts that are expected to last for more than one financial year.

Ihe Group publishes its consolidated and separate account in Naira, |t conducts business in a range of currencies,
including Euro and US Dollar. As a result, the Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks, which will affect transaction
costs and the transtation resalts

CGroup Company
3112206 31122015 31122016 31122015
ND0D0 I REL N0 4]
Monelary assets/liabilities denominated in Euro
Cash and bank balances 3,783,121 (9,485,086) B59.680 (12,023,173)
Trade receivables 5,202,156 B a9E, 70 7033236 6,725,381
Trade |'.ua1.fr1l'.-'.t>-=_ [16,382,702) __-;H.l'l ERhY (3.831,554) (3,078,257)
(3,397 425) {8,909,834) 4,060,962 i8,377,049)
honetary assets/ habithnes denomnated i Dollars 5
Cash and bank balances 1,652,703 12,182 et 1,652,703 12,182,864
Trade receivables 2,195,009 . 2,195,008
[rade payvables - (52,50 - (52,990
3,847,712 12129 879 3847712 12,129,879

8% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting forelgn carrency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessinent of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end
for a 18% change in foreign currency rates, Foreign exchange rate risk sensitivity o foreign exchange movements in the
above example has been caleulated on a svmmetric basis. The symmetric basis assumes that a increase or decrease in
foreign exchange movement would result in the same amount,

Maira depreciates by 18% (2013 12%) against Euro 611,537 1065, L&D (730,573 1,005,246
Maira depreciates by 18% (2015; 12%) against US Dollar (692 588) {1,455,585) (B2, 588) (1,453,583}
Impact on reported profit [81,051) {386,405) (1,423,561) (450,3349)

Foreign exchange rate risk sensitivity 1o foreign exchange movements in the above example has been calculated on a
symmetric basis. The symmelric basis assumes that increase or decrease in foreign exchange movement would result in
the same amount.
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30. Financial instruments {continued)

3033

30331

N33z

333

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial insbrument or customer
contracl, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its investing activities
iprimarily trade recetvables], and trom its financing activities; including deposits with financial institutions
and financial guarantees. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and obtaining sufficient collateral (in form of advances), where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk
of financial loss from defaults. The Group transacts with government, government institutions and other top
rate entities and individuals that are rated the equivalent of investment grade and above. This information is
supplied by independent rating agencies where available and, if not available, the Group uses other publicly
available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. The Group's
exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continucusly monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by
counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the risk management committee annually.

Trade receivables

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury
department in accordance with the Group's policy. Surplus funds are spread amongst reputable commercial
banks and funds must be within credit limits assigned to each counterpart. Counterpart credit limits are
reviewed by the Group’s financial controller periodically and may be updated throughout the year, The
limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential
counterparty’s failure.

Depaosits with financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury
department in accordance with the Group's policy, Surplus funds are spread amongst reputable commercial
banks and funds must be within credit limits assigned to each counterpart. Counterpart credit limits are
reviewed by the Group's financial controller periodically and may be updated throughout the year. The
limils are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential
counterparty’s failure.

Exposure to credit risks

The carrving value of the Company’s financial assets represents its maximum exposure to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Group Company
31,/12/2016 31122015 31122016 31122015
N'000 N"000 N'000 N'000
Trade receivables 92,630,257 74,657 501 89,948 480 73,351,892
Cash and bank balances 10,584,522 13,360,038 6229515 10,148,623

103,214,779 88,017,539 96,177,995 83,500,515

30334 Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

JULILS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
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Except in the form of advances, the Group dees not hold any other collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

30.34

30.3.5

Ligquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liabilities.

Liquidity tables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'DY)

The maturity profile of the recognised financial instruments are as follows:

Financial assets
[tade and other receivables

Tax receivable

Amount due from customers under

construction contracts

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade and ather payables

Fetirement benetit liabilities

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
['ax receivable

Amount due from customers under
construction contracts

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade and other payables

Retirement benefit liabilities

Fair value of financial instruments

Trade and other receivables/ payables, cash and cash equivalents and short term investments are valued at
their amortised cost, which are deemed to reflect their value.

JULIUS BERGER NIGERLA PLC

RC 5852

Group

<1 year 1-3 years 3-b years Total
N'000 N'0O0 N'000 N'000
102,207,341 - - 102,207,341
1,453,002 25 900,873 - 27 A45.877
33,082,455 = - 33,082,455
10,584,522 = - 10,584,522
147,357,320 25,960,875 - 173,518,195
33,172,798 - 33,172,798
44015318 4 - 44,015,318
39,133 ~ £ 39,133
77,227,249 = - V7,227,249

Company
<1 year 1-3 years 3-6 years Total
N'000 NI00 N'000 N'000
100,208,084 2 100,298 S84
1,395,660 25,282,312 26,677,972
29,637,665 = - 29,637,665
6,229,515 - 6,229.515
137,561,524 25,282,312 - 162,844,136
33172798 - - 33,172,798
31,191,400 - 31,191,400
27,146 e - 27146
54,391,544 2 - 84,391,344
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31. Related party information

31.1 ldentity of related entities

iii

vi

Vil

Viii
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Abumet Nigeria Limited Subsidiary
Julius Berger Services Nigeria Limited Subsidiary
PrimeTech Design and Engineering Limited Subsidiary
Julius Berger Medical Services Limited Subsidiary
Jultus Berger International GmbH Subsidiary
Julius Berger Investments Limited Subsidiary
Julius Berger Free Zone Enterprise Subsidiary
Construction Engineering Contracting GmbH Sub-subsidiary

Kev management persannel (note 31.4)

Abumet Nigeria Limited: This 15 a 90% owned subsidiary of Julius Berger Nigeria Ple. The company entered
into various transactions with the related party ranging from purchase of goods and services, to expenses
incurred by the related company. The outstanding amount is from the various transactions entered with the
related party.

julius Berger Services Nigeria Limited: This is a 100% owned subsidiary of Julius Berger Nigeria Plc. The
company entered into various transactions with the related party ranging from stevedoring services, to
expenses incurred by the related company. The cutstanding amount is from the various transactions entered
with the related party.

PrimeTech Design and Engineering Limited: This is a 100% owned subsidiary of Julius Berger Nigeria Ple.
Fhe company entered into various transactions with the related party ranging from Design and Engineering
services, to expenses incurred by the related company, The outstanding amount is from the various
transactions entered with the related party.

Julius Berger Medical Services Limited: This s a 100% owned subsidiary of Julius Berger Nigeria Ple. The
company entered into various transactions with the related party ranging trom Medical services, to expenses
incurred by the related company. The outstanding amount is from the various transactions entered with the
related party,

Julius Berger International GmbH: This is a 100% owned subsidiary of Julius Berger Nigeria Ple. The
company entered into various transactions with the related party ranging from purchase of goods and
services, to expenses incurred by the related company. The outstanding amount is from the various
transactions entered with the related party.

Julius Berger Investments Limited: This s a 100% owned subsidiary of Julius Berger Nigeria Ple. The
company did not enter into any transactions with the related party in the period.

Julius Berger Free Zone Enterprise; This is a 100% owned subsidiary of Julius Berger Nigeria Ple. The
company entered into various transactions with the related parby ranging from engineering services, to
expenses incurred by the related company. The outstanding amount is from the various transactions entered
with the related party,

Construction Engineering Contracting GmbH: This is a wholly owned subsidiary of Julius Berger
International GmbH (a 100% owned subsidiary of Julius Berger Migeria Plc). The company did not enter into
any transactions with the related party in the period.

2006 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

31. Related party information (Continued) Group Company

31.2 Outstanding balances 31122016 3122015 31/12/20106 31/12/2015
N'000 IN"0O0 N'000 N'000

[Mee from related entities
Abumet Nigeria Limited - - 2,382,204 1,119,557
Julius Berger Services Nigeria [imited - - 240,406 425,060
PrimeTech Design and Engineering Limited - Z 178,803 437,074
Julius Berger Medical Services Limited - - 911,935 [023,9604
Julius Berger International GmbH - . 61,597 22
Julius Berger Free Zone Enterprise - - 856,810 1.0025.539
- 5 4,631,755 4,031,346

[Due to related entities

Aburmet Nigeria Limited - - 425,584 218772
Julius Berger Services Nigeria Limited - - 271,086 259917
PeimeTech Design and Engineering Limnited - 79,769 156,836
Julius Berger Medical Services Limited - - 4497 534 426,964
Julius Berger International GmbH . - 23,667,158 17,767,799
[ulius Berger Free Zone Enterprise - - 2,770,499 -

- - 27,705,980 18,870,288

I'he putstanding balances due from/ to related entities are not secured.

3.3 Related party transactions

During the year the company traded with related parties on terms similar to such transaction entered into with
third parties as follows:

Group Company
Purchase of Purchase of
Sale of goods goods and  Sale of goods goods and
and services services  and services SeTVICES
000 N000 N'000 N'000
Julius Berger Services Nigeria Limited - 2 147 820a 873,780
Abumet Nigeria Limited e 1419039 932,832
PrimeTech Design and Engineering Limited . i 521973 Hd5, 295
Julius Berger Medical Services Limited - - 1,040,801 2,018,560
Julius Berger International GmbH - - 63,053 8,330,802
Julius Berger Free Zone Enterprise - - 1,262,519 -
- - 4,455,191 12,830,269
JULILS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2006 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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: JULIUS BERGER

31. Related party information (Continued)
Key management personnel
Mr. Mutiu Sunmonu, CON
Engr. Heinz Stockhausen (German)
HRH Igwe Peter Nwokike Anugwu, .1, OFR
Engr. Jafaru Damulak
Dr. Ernest Nnaemeka Azudialu-Obigjesi
Mr. George Marks (German)
Engr. Wolfgang Goetsch (Austrian)
Mr, Wolfgang Kollermann (German)
Alhaji Zubairu Bayi

31.4 Remuneration of key management personnel

Short term benefits

Long term benefits
Post-emplovment benefits
Termination benefits

a
i

B

Emoluments:
Chairman
COther directors

Feoes
Cther emoluments

Highest paid director

N N
190,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,007 and above
MNumber of directors who had no emoluments

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
RC 6852

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Independent Director

Director

Director

Director

Managing Director (Executive)
Financial Director (Executive)

Director Administration (Execubive)

31.7 Other information on key management personnel

The short term benefits include fees and expenses and other remunerations for Directors
Details of loans from/ to key management personnel
There were no loans from/to key management personnel during the reporting period.

31.6 Identify the ultimate controlling party of Julius Berger Nigeria Plc.

Mo entity has been identified as the ultimate controlling party for the reporting period.

The number of directors excluding the chairman whose emoluments fell within the following ranges were:

Group Company
31/12/2016 31/12/2015 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
N'000 N'000 N'DO0 N'000
405,405 460,858 403,405 458,858
405,405 460,858 403,405 458,858

Group Company
31/12/2016 31122015 31/12/2016 311272015
N'000 D00 N'000 N'000
3,200 3,200 5,200 5,200
400,205 455,658 398,205 453,658
405,405 460,858 403,405 458,858
22,275 20,700 22,275 20,700
383,130 1:401,158 381,130 438,158
405,405 460,858 403,405 458,858
176,806 147,433 176,806 147433

4 B 4 :

& 7 5 5

Mo Director's emoluments other than stated were waived during the vear and no payments were made to any Directors,
past or present in respect of pension and compensation for loss of office.

2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JULIUS BERGER NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

32, Guarantees and other financial commitments
32.1 Guarantee, pledge of financial commitments
The Company and its subsidiaries did not guarantee or pledge any financial commitment for liabilities of
third parties.
32.2 Contingent liabilities

There were no known contingent liabilities in the ordinary course of business,

32.3 Financial commitments

[he Directors are of the opinion that all known liabilities and commitments have been taken into account in
the preparation of these tinancial statements.

33. Events after the reporting period
There were no material events after the reporting period which could have had material effect on the state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and the profit for the vear then ended date that have not been
adequately provided for or recognised in the financial statements,

34. Approval of financial statements

I'he financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 13th March 2017.

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JULIUS BERGER

Balance sheet

Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Coodwill

(Mher inhmgthlle assets
Investment property
Investment in subsidiaries
I'rade and other receivables
Tax receivables

Deferred tax assets

Other financial assets

Mt current liabilities

Mon-current liabilities
Borrowings

Fetirement benefits labilities
Deferred tax Habilities

Amount due to customers under
construction contracts
Provisions

Met Assets

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Share premium

Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings

Attributable to equity holders of the
parent

Mo - controlling interest

Turnover and profit
Revenue

rofit before taxation
Profit atter taxation
Dhvidend

Earnings per ordinary share {Naira):

- Actual
- Drlubed/ Adjusted

MNet Asset per share (Maira):
- Actual
- [Diluted / Adjusted

Dividend per share (Maira):
- Actual

- Diluted / Adjusted

- Dividend cover (LHmes)

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY - GROUP

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000 N'000
49,712,834 38,376,513 68,369,671 67,995,015 57,079,027
8,348,748 5,041,184 4,606,412 4,842,708 4,634,422
2,76 32712 77A02 118,297 127.935
2,444,460 2,546,436 2,648,412 780,177 i
569,619 844,122 2334704 1,469,591 1,706,067
25,962,564 21,039,915 35,060,509 31,075,595 25,957,783
5,453,858 10,087,301 8,040,407 7 468,271 3017.056
- - - . 4,125,734
&4,023,646 48,342,538 19,201,927 5,303,547 13,574 847
156,518,495 146,510,721 140,340,504 122,054,101 110,222,851
: ; {3,201,710) (6,435,141) -
(2,463,491) (1,853,781) {1,996,506) (2,033,004) (1,656,643)
(9,185,562) (12,989,322) (13,220,121}  (12,336,676) 5,666,877)
(119,098,895)  (106,971,355)  (93.690,330)  (80,214852)  (87,755,151)
(454,232) (404,308) {2,135,994) ~ 4
25,316,315 24,291,955 26,095,843 21,034,428 15,144,180
660,000 660,000 60,000 600,000 600,000
425,440 425,440 425,440 425,440 425,440
7,119,062 419,755 019,411 687,896 222,992
17,065,287 22,729,580 23,420,332 18,863,052 13,774,577
25,269,789 24,234,775 25,425,183 20,576,388 15,023,009
46,526 37,180 NG 458,040 121171
25,316,315 24,291,955 26,095,543 21,034,428 15,144,180

138,093,752
(1,498,029)
3,015,014

2.28
228

19.18
19.18

133,507,574

196,808,632

212,737,291

201,565,276

0,490,973 13,134, 896 [6, 220,536 12,341,492
1,759,857 8,088,795 8,064,235 8,193,543
1,980,000 3,564,000 3,240,000 3,000,000
133 .13 6.72 6,83

133 .13 .11 6.21
5.4 19.77 17.53 12.62
15.40 19.77 1594 11.47
1.50 270 270 250

1.50 270 245 227

.89 233 249 273

Earnings, dividend and nel asset per share are based on profit after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent and the
number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares at the end of sach financial year.
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JULIUS BERGER

Balance sheet

MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Investment property
Investment in subsidiaries
Trade and other receivables
Tax receivables

Deferred tax assets

Other financial assets
Metcurrent liabilities

Non-current liabilities
HL;J'J'L'}W'LHES

Retirement benefits liahilities
Deferred tax liabilibes

Armount due to customers under

construction contracts
Provisions

Met Assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premiam

Foreien currency translation reserve
5

Retained earnings

Attributable to equity holders of the

[rarent
Mon - controlling interest

Turnover and profit
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation
Dividend

Earnings per ordinary share (Naira):

- Actual
Diluted / Adjusted

Net Asset per share (Naira):
- Actual
Criluted / Adjusted

Dividend per share (Naira):
Actual

- Diluted/ Adjusted

- Dividend cover (times)

Farnings, dividend and net asset per share are based on profit after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent anc

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY - COMPANY

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
N'000 N'000 N'D00 N'D00 N'D00
47 093 218 55,470,657 66,711,736 hie, 542 B3l 56,172,990
2,444,460 2,546,436 2,648,412 780,177 :
15,193,398 15,193,398 13,131,581 12,195,207 11,375,207
550,319 £44,122 1,622,353 1,469,591 1,706,063
25282312 20.273.002 34,272 482 30,313,672 25 368,942
5,375,286 9,874,831 7 867,780 7,772,392 2,899,471
: _ ) . 4,125734
47,006,870 40,089,016 4,744,619 (1,759,845) 7,354,969
142,945,863 144,292 362 130,998,963 117,314,044 109,003,376
- - (3,200,710 (B,435,141) -
(1,311,668) (1420945)  {1,606,929) (1,678,155) (1,449,205)
(9.090,213)  (12568459)  (12,933,842)  (12,675,558) (5,693,035)
(119,098,895)  (111344,506)  (93,690,330)  (B0214,852)  (87,339.455)
(300,000) (300,000 2 : .
13,145,087 18,658,452 19,566,152 16,310,338 14,521,681
660,000 B60,000 660,000 600,000 600,000
425 440 425,440 425,440 425,440 425,440
12,059,647 17573012 18,480,712 15,284,898 13,496,241
13,145,087 18,658,452 19,566,152 16,310,338 14,521,681
13,145,087 18,658.452 19,566,152 16,310,335 14,521,681
119,813,302 119,242,541 179978707 184,212,185 196,954,713
(1,239,251) 6,234,335 10,028,524 10,976,029 13,496,241
(3,533,363) 2,656,300 6,495,814 4733213 7 772,055
. 1,980,000 3,564,000 3,240,000 3,000,000
(2.68) 2.01 492 3.94 548
(2.68) 2.m 4,92 3.59 5.80
9.96 14.14 14.82 13,59 12.10
9.96 14.14 14.82 1236 11.00
a 1.50 2.70 2.70 250
< 1.50 2.70 245 2.27
5 1.34 1.82 146 2,59

the number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares at the end of each financial year.
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B3 suLius BERGER

MNote
Fevenus f

Cost of sales

Wages, salaries and allowances
Redundancy henefits

Materials & consumables
Sub-contractors

Petroleum products
Transportation of equipment
Spares and repairs
Depreciation

Planning, surveying and projecting expenses

Gross profit

Marketing expenses

Advertisement & publications

Administrative expenses
Salaries and allowances

Rents

Insurance

Travelling expenses
Entertainment

Motor vehicle expenses

Medical expenses

Audit fees

General office expenses and stationery
Telephone and telex expenses
Bank interest & charges

Photo expenses/ donabions

Legal and other protessional fees

Subscription & registration

Operating profit

JULIUS BERGER NIGERIA PLC
RC 6852

DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Group

12/31/16
N'UUO

138,993,752

12/31/15
BNDO0

133,807,574

Company

12/31/16
NDOO

119,813,392

12/31/15
IN"OU0

114,242,541

26,157,681 24,720,074 23,453,598 18,262,052
12,046,851 13,575,639 13,179,172 11,822,591
14,154,018 11,242,466 13,253,271 10,631,627
9.209.426 6,594,000 9,213,206 6,908,514
1,174,793 604,154 916,934 449,505
4,226,646 9,968,454 4,087,123 9,841,705
9,078,129 9,771,698 B,777 B55 9,569,070
8,629,747 14,596,576 8,246,509 13,673,947
84,767,291 91,473,106 81,127,668 81,209,011
54,226,461 42,334,468 38,685,724 38,033,530
23,327 75,140 45,408 66,355
53327 75,140 45,408 66,355
253,565,141 16,932,318 13,067,347 13,129,247
2.296.375 2,160,552 1,172,595 095,966
1,893,340 2,299 274 1,725,991 2,166,807
1,275,088 1,743,911 946,618 1,521,353
433,974 187,018 64,506 HE,880
242,001 159,861 147,141 127,924
1,601,040 1.089,131 1,552,972 1,019,055
87,312 82,250 52,920 47.250
2,990,309 4,932,793 49,754 10,928,092
274,063 320,893 161,481 158,673
43,253
34,380 67,22 - -
634,122 452 557 607,914 437,472
10,452 17,923 =
7,380,880 30,445,734 19,549,439 30,650,719
16,792,254 11,813,594 19,090,877 7,316,456
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JULIUS BERGER

TURNOVER AND PROFIT AFTER TAX

N=MILLION

N= MILLION

JULIUS
RC 6852

TURNOVER

250,010}
212,737
196,809 201,565

200,000

133,808

150,000
100,000
50,000
0
2016 2013 2014 2013 2012
PROFIT AFTER TAX
9,000
8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3000
2,000
1,000
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
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